Youngsville ABC Board
* P. O. Box 387
@ 101 N College Street
Youngsville, NC 27596
(919) 556-3590
ABCStore@townofyoungsville.org

ABC

AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 6, 2020
9:00AM

YOUNGSVILLE TOWN HALL CONFERENCE ROOM
(TELECONFERENCE AND WEB CONFERENCE WILL BE AVAILABLE)
134 US 1A SOUTH

If joining via Microsoft Teams, use the following link:
tinyurl.com/abc-2020-11-06

If joining via phone, use the following dial-in info:
Phone Number: §72-240-8002
Conference code: 341 293 082#
CALL TO ORDER
APPROVAL OF AGENDA
ETHICS STATEMENT
A. In accordance with G.S. 18B-201, it is the duty of every Board Member to avoid both
conflicts of interest and appearances of conflicts. Does any member have any known
conflict of interest or appearance of conflict with respect to any matters coming before
the Board today? If so, please identify the conflict or appearance of conflict and refrain
from any undue participation in the particular matter involved.
CITIZEN’S COMMENTS
FINANCIAL REPORT
CONSENT AGENDA
A. MINUTES FROM THE ABC BOARD REGULAR MEETING — OCTOBER 2, 2020
ACTION REQUESTED: APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA

OLD BUSINESS



Youngsville ABC Board

* P. O. Box 387
L 101 N College Street
Youngsville, NC 27596
(919) 556-3590
ABCStore@townofyoungsville.org

ABC

A. CONSIDER SALE OF ABC STORE PURSUANT TO PRICE IN UPSET BID
PROCEDURE ($395,000)

ACTION REQUESTED: APPROVE SALE AS PROPOSED
8. NEW BUSINESS
A. CONSIDER LEASE AGREEMENT TO RENT ABC STORE PROPERTY
ACTION REQUESTED: APPROVE AS DRAFTED

B. CONSIDER BUDGET AMENDMENT OF $3,736.25 TO PROCURE DESIGN
SERVICES FOR ANEW ABC STORE

ACTION REQUESTED: APPROVE AS REQUESTED

9. REPORTS AND OTHER BUSINESS

i. COVID-19 UPDATE / DISCUSSION
ii. CHAIRMAN

iii. MEMBERS

iv. FINANCE OFFICER
v. STORE MANAGER

vi. CLERK

vii, TOWN ADMINISTRATOR

10. CLOSED SESSION
A. N.C.G.S. 143-318.11 (6) PERSONNEL
11. ADJOURN
This is a public meeting and is subject to North Carolina open meetings and public records law.
To preserve the public record and increase transparency, video and audio recordings are
performed at all public meetings. Please note these recordings, the clerk’s detailed minutes of all

meetings, and any documents reviewed during meetings are public domain and may be disclosed
to third parties.



Monthly Financial Statements

Youngsville ABC Store
For the period ended September 30, 2020

Prepared on

November 3, 2020

For management use only



Table of Contents

BEIANIO0 SHOO v cossmmmmrrsummimmssmommsmins sy 8 s e pauTmiss 14 aenss s R SRS AR A RS S B TAR  TARRAR R ESET 3
INCOME STATBMEBNL.......ciiiiiiiiii et bt b et a st e et ete e eae e eeeeenesee e eseesenesaenennsnann 5
PEORE NG LOBS D IO axiiiniscisisisssiinmassinisimamniisimmsasmenmossssssnons seansssmpmpmss erss srs wassinessas s s sasase sok b e OLES 7
i A T T S O ———————————————— 9
ATP AQING SUIMIMETY ...ttt se e ese et b e sssse s ssssssse st ess s eba s sbe s st sae e et esessese et eseesesesaeasensesessasesenens 11
Biidget va. Actuals:2020-2021 TOTRLS wusscmssvmsnsasmns i s st theemnssennres ass 4 smessmmmmor s mre, 14
Budget vs. Actuals 2020-2021 TO DATE ....c.eiiiiieeeeeeeteeeiee ettt ee et tstes s et eesaeasesee st esessseeessees 16

2017



Balance Sheet

As of September 30, 2020

Total
' ' As of Sep 30,2020 As of Sep 30, 2019 (PY)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
100 Checking Account 215,068.83 125,676.59
101 Land Sale Holding Account - 19,750.00
Total 100 Checking Account B 234,818.83  125,676.59
110 Imprest Funds 1,318.00 1,318.00
Total Bank Accounts -~ 236,136.83 12699459
Other Current Assets
130 Prepaid Expenses 0.00 6,479.42
140 Inventory 98,139.65 90,795.65
B Total Other Current Assets 98,159.65 N 97;275.07
Total Current Assets - 334,276.48 o 224,269.66
Fixed Assets
180 Fixed Assets
181 Land 184,756.00 184,756.00
182 Buildings 66,254.65 66,254.65
183 Leasehold Improvements 5,076.61 5,076.61
184 Furniture & Fixtures 6,962.21 6,962.21
185 Equipment 25,814.60 37,674.78
Total 180 Fixed Assets 7 -~ 28886407 ~ 300,724.25
190 Accumulated Depreciation -77,499.74 -99,381.41
~ Total Fixed Assets ) 211,364.33 201,342.84
TOTALASSETS - $545,640.81 7 $425,612.50
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
200 Accounts Payable 148,810.13 93,104.95
Total Accounts Payable ) _ 148,810.13 93,"I_ 04.95
Credit Cards
205 Union Bank Credit Card 873.31  763.69
Total Credit Cards 873.31 763.69
Other Current Liabilities
210 Payroll Taxes -1.48 0.00
211 Federal Income Tax Withheld 2,471.68 2,427.76
213 NC Income Tax Withheld 322.00 287.00
214 Health Insurance Payable -95.14 -307.22
- Total 210 Payroll Taxes  2,697.06  2,407.54
220 Other Taxes Payable
Youngsville ABC Store 37



224 Liquor Sales _Téx_Payabie
Total 220 Other Taxes Payable :
230 Other Payables
231 Due to Town of Youngsville
240 Accrued Expenses
241 Accrued Payroll
242 Accrued Vacation
~ Total 240 Accrued E)ibéhéeé

~ Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabllities '
Long-Term Liabilities
260 Non-current Portion of Long-term Debt
Total Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
305 Net Investments in Capital Assets
310 Designated for Working Capital
320 Unrestricted
Net Income

" Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

'As of Sep 30, 2020
0.02

©0.02

19,750.00
48,000.00

1,449.97
9,626.24

11,076.21

- 81,523.29
231,206.73

173,808.64
173,808.64
405,015.37

20,836.28
65,445.50

4,816.00
49,527.66

140,625.44
$545,640.81

Youngsville ABC Store

Total

~ Asof Sep 30, 2019 (PY)

5.72
8.72

46,166.48

0.00
7,461.21
7,461.21

56,043.95

149,912.59

184,162.72
184,162.72
334,075.31

20,836.28
47,677.76
4,816.00
18,207.15

91,537.19
$425,612.50

417



Income Statement

July - September, 2020

Total

INCOME

400 Liguor Sales

410 Mixed Beverage Sales

Total Income

500,768.99
__12780.18
513,519.09

COST OF GOODS SOLD
500 Taxes Based on Revenue
510 Mixed Beverage Tax (Dept. of Revenue)
520 Mixed Beverage Tax (Dept of Human Resources)
540 County Rehabilitation Tax — Franklin
Total 500 Taxes Based on Revenue

600 Cost of Sales

610 Liquor & Wine/Mixer Sales
620 Store Supplies
630 Bank Credit Card Fees

77Tota| 600 Co_st_ o_f Siles
Total Cost of Goods Sold

114,731.00
135.44
1,510.23
116,376.67

265,644.99
691.50
6,963.84
273,300.33

 389,677.00

GROSS PROFIT

123,842.09

EXPENSES

700 Personal Services & Employee Benefits
705 Salaries and Wages
710 Board Member Compensation
715 Payroll Tax Expense
720 Health Insurance
730 WC Insurance & Employee Bonds
735 Employee Continuing Ed & Testing
" Total 700 Personal Services & %Ey_ee Benefits
750 Contracted Services
752 Finance Officer Contracted Services
765 Professional Services (Auditor & Attorney)
770 Temporary Labor

Total 750 Contracted Services
780 Repairs & Maintenance

785 Repairs and Maintenance — Buildings

790 Repairs and Maintenance — Equipment

Total 780 Repairs & Maintenance -
800 General & Administrative Expenses

815 Dues and Subscriptions

820 General Liability Insurance

830 Miscellaneous

835 Office Supplies

840 Postage & PO Box

855 Telephone

Youngsville ABC Store

37,616.15
648.96
2,860.78
3,524.40
2,285.00
150.00
47,085.29

2,100.00
1,9756.00

720.00
4,795.00

1,296.66

1,357.00

4,387.40
3,056.00
67.09
901.35
165.00
697.73

517



Tota

860 Utilities 1,470.57
870 Uniforms 332.01
Total 800 General & Administrative Expenses _ 11,077.15
950 Other Expense
951 Profits Paid to the Town 9,999.99
Total 950 Other Expense 9,999.99
Total Expense; - : 74,'314.43
NET OPERATING INCOME 49,527.66
N $49,527.66

NET INCOME

Youngsville ABC Store

6/17



I~
—

21015 gy a|IAsBunoA

00022 00°0¥2 00°0¥2 00°0%2 loqe Arelodws ] 02/
00°G.6°} 00°G.6'} (Asulony @ Joupny) SeoIISS [BUOISSB0Id G9/
0070012 00°00Z 00700 00°00Z S80IBS PBIOBIU0Y I8 SoUBUI 25/
00°0 S80IMI8S PRloBIU0) 05
62°G80°LY 29'6L9L1 65°888'v1 8L'LIS'YL ~ Siyeuag afojdw @ ssolneg [euosiad 00/ [eloL
00705+ 00°0S} Bunsa @ p3 Buinuuon sekojdws ge/
006822 00°682°2 spuog @afojdw3 @ sourINSU] DM 0EL
0F'2S‘e 08 vLL L 08 vLL L 08 %L1} soueInsu| yyesH 0g.
8770982 £5°6/6 90°256 61'626 asuadx3 xe] |joihed 12
96°879 89661 09'6¥2 89'661 uonesuadwo) Jequisy pJeog 012
G1'9192€ 15°068°2H eL'ZIs'el ISELECL sebep pue saueeS G0
000 sjjauag mm>o_ac._m ¥ S8@JIAI8S |euosSlad 00L
S3SNIdX3
60°2¥8'c2! 81°00v'92 00°908‘c¥ 16'5E9°EY 1140Hd SSO4D
00°2.9'68¢ 12'v02'82 | £9°080'221 9g9°16E'VEL P|OS SPOOY) JO 1S0D [e10L
£e'00g'e/2 0L LL6°06 £e°/6£'88 06°L50'v6 S8[es J0 150D 009 [e10L
¥8°€96°9 G8'26£2 £0'60%'2 96°191'2 sea4 pIeD UpeID Yued 0€9
0S°169 057169 salddng 8.101S 029
66"779°592 G/'928°/8 0£'826°G8 ¥6'688°16 so[eg JoxIN/ulM % Jonbr 019
00°0 S8[eg J0 150D 009
19797911 19°€62'L8 PEEVL'8E 99°6EE 0¥ anuaAay uo pasegq saxe] 006 [el0L
£20LS't 26°/8% 65 L6V 2L ves uipjuelq —xe| uoneyjiqeysy Auno) 04
vy Gel GL'2h GL LY ¥6' 1t (seaunosey uewny jo ydeq) xe| abeiansg paxiN 025
00" LEL VL 00°£9/2'9¢ 00°861‘8E 00°0/.°6E (enuanay jo “1deq) xe ebeiensg pexi 015
000 anuanay uo pasegq sexe| 009
a10S Sa00D 40 180D
60'6LS'CIS  S6V09'V9L 19'988°0L} L¥'120'8L1 awoou| [e10]
0L'0SL2E 09'206'€ 02'S55'Y 0£'262'y seo|eg abelonag paxiN 0L
66°89.°00S GE'20L091 LY 1E8°991 LVSELELL sejes Jonbr] 00F
INOODNI
[el01 0202 des 0202 bny 0202 Inp

0202 ‘Jaquaidasg - A|np

Yiuop Aq sso pue yjoid



I

:
o
(U]
I3
)
&)

99'/25°6Y8  9L°199'V$ 2y 198°'12$  8¥'700'€2$ ] 3WOONI L3N
99°/25'6¥ 9/°199% Zr'198‘le 8yv00'ce - - INOONI ONILYEIJO 13N

EVTIEYL Zr'8EL'1E 8516’12 £7°1£9°02 B sesuedx3 [e10L
66'666'6  eeeee's  goeee's EE'EEE'E i - esuedxg o0 056 [@I10L
66'666'6 £E'EEE'e - geeee'’s EEEEE'E . - N UMO | B} O} pIed SHOId 156
000 asuadx3 JaUl0 056
SLLLO'HE 16'EL0°L 199'282°2 85'08'L sesuedx3 eAesIUILPY B [eleueD 008 [el0L
L0zee 1026 - - Swuoun 0/8
IS 0L} S9°661 £0°005 68°0Lp sem(in 098
€L°/69 627262 62°2€2 Sl'eee auoyds|e| 558
00°59} 00°0k1 00'SS xog Od 3 ebe1sod 0yg
GE'106 66°L1 2e'6.9 vOvLL sal|ddng 8040 SE8
60°29 60°29 SNosUE||22sI 0€8
00°950°¢ 00°950°e souelinsu| Ayjiger] [essusn 0z8
Ob'28€'y 68°0LL'E 2019, BY'SLS suopduosgns pue sang G 1.8
000 Sesuadx3 aARBJSIUILPY ¥ [BJAUSD) 008
00°2G€'} 99'96/ 00°00S €09 souBURjUIRN B Siedey 08/ [el0L
ve09 o ¥E09 - uawdinbz — souBUSIUEY PUE Siedey 06/
99'962°|L 99961 00°00S sBuip|ing — aoueusiUlEp pue siedesy cg/
000 aoueuUBUIB| %R Sieday 08/

00S6LY  00'GL6'E 00°076 00°0¥6 . ‘ SeolAles PeloBIU0D 05/ [Bl0)
[e10L 020z dog ozozbny  ozozInp B



Profit and Loss PY Comparison

July - September, 2020

Total
* o - Jul - Sep, 2020 Jul - Sep, 2019 (PY)
INCOME
400 Liquor Sales 500,768.99 347,889.07
410 Mixed Beverage Sales 12,750.10 - 11,168.58
Total Income 513,519.09 359,057.65
COST OF GOODS SOLD
500 Taxes Based on Revenue
510 Mixed Beverage Tax (Dept. of Revenue) 114,731.00 80,275.00
520 Mixed Beverage Tax (Dept of Human Resources) 135.44 125.47
540 County Rehabilitation Tax — Franklin 1,510.23 1,156.22
Total 500 Taxes Based on Revenue - 116,376.67 81,556.69
600 Cost of Sales
610 Liguor & Wine/Mixer Sales 265,644.99 191,217.24
620 Store Supplies 691.50 1,498.60
630 Bank Credit Card Fees 6,963.84 5,632.53
Total 600 Cost of Sales - 273,300.33 198,348.37
Total Cost of Goods Sold 389,677.00 279,905.06
GROSS PROFIT 123,842.09 79,152.59
EXPENSES
700 Personal Services & Employee Benefits
705 Salaries and Wages 37,616.15 32,840.01
710 Board Member Compensation 648.96 748.80
715 Payroll Tax Expense 2,860.78 2,491.27
720 Health Insurance 3,524.40 3,116.88
730 WC Insurance & Employee Bonds 2,285.00 1,949.00
735 Employee Continuing Ed & Testing 150.00 -
Total 700 Personal Services & Empioygé Benefits 47,085.29 41 ,145_._96
750 Contracted Services
752 Finance Officer Contracted Services 2,100.00 2,100.00
765 Professional Services (Auditor & Attorney) 1,975.00
770 Temporary Labor 720.00 120.00
Total 750 Contracted Services o 4,795.00 2,220.00
780 Repairs & Maintenance
785 Repairs and Maintenance — Buildings 1,296.66 334.82
790 Repairs and Maintenance — Equipment 60.34 338.76
~ Total 780 Fiepairs & Maintenance o - 1,357.00 _ 673.58
800 General & Administrative Expenses
815 Dues and Subscriptions 4,387.40 250.50
820 General Liability Insurance 3,056.00 3,033.00
830 Miscellaneous 67.09
835 Office Supplies 901.35 610.01
840 Postage & PO Box 165.00 110.00
Youngsville ABC Store 917



Total

Jul - Sep, 2020 Jul - Sep, 2019 (PY)
855 Telephone 697.73 666.39
860 Utilities 1,470.57 1,486.01
870 Uniforms 332.01
Total 800 General & Administrative Exﬁéné_és T ,(F?:15 6,155.91
950 Other Expense
951 Profits Paid to the Town 9,999.99 9,999.99
Total 950 Other Expense - 9,999.99 © 9,999.99
Total Expenses 74,314.43 60,195.44
NET OPERATING INCOME 49,527.66 18,957.15
OTHER EXPENSES
990 Other Miscellaneous Expense 750.00
Total Other Expenses - 0.00 750.00
NET OTHER INCOME 0.00 -750.00
NET INCOME - $49,527.66 $18,207.15
Youngsville ABC Siore 1017



al01g Ngy ajiasBunoA

€719 gL 19 O sids uipy
00°00£ 00°00L O7T1d VdD uosiened H ujoep
20°e€8 20°ee8 sluidg wnjuyu|
Leocl Lg'9ct 09 % BuieloH
S6'E6- G6°€6- Ae|isia peeH uoyiH
08 vIL 08'¥LL Slauped exaH
£2688°01 £2'688°01 spue.g [IH uaAesH
8861 88'61L/. Ag|nsiq sieyiolg uosiuer)
c6'/8Y F WA 172 juswuedaq eoueuld AunoD uipjuel4
28'.69 28',69 077 ‘Ais|nsiq sesoy Ino4
G8°0EY'y G8'0EY' Y ou| ‘uoneiausn yui4
0¥ EV6’L ov'EY6’L Kisuipy ojleo M3
Al eyt csLSt 971 siuds AQ
L9°L9 19°29 diog polid sie|nsig s.uebbng
6E¥9} B6E¥9L [euoljeuIalU| ouuoIesIq
96°1S| 96°LS | sudg sobiwesen oabeiq
9 Zra'rl o9v'era'vl WwN oabeiq
98869 98'86S wids g suipp Ajlwe4 yoasinaQq
eLegl €129l *ou| ‘uoolfe(q
66'67¢ 66°6¥7¢2 -ou) ‘Bunnsuoc) wodeq
109g9°L L0"9€9‘ L spue.g uone||BIsuo)
Sy SLLLY suoduwl] weyieyn
98 vLL 9GS/l spue.g ajise)
06'€96'c 06°€96'C eouaWy Lvedwen
91'1.L5's 9L'L.S'S UBLLIOS -UMOIg
£8'GEL €86l Ae|nsiq ebpuuayosig
LLTLLLEL LU LLLZE fiolung weag
PS¥9€'S Y3 ¥9E°S VSN Ipiedeg
60°29 60729 ubisaq ubig g3g
89°¢- 89°¢- suudg Anjus) 1s12
[eloL IoA0 pue |g 06- 192 09-1Ie oe-1 jueund

020z ‘0€ Jaqueldag jo sy

Arewwng Buiby d/v




™~
X
ol

ai01g 0gy 3j|insbuno

¥€'L02 vE°L02 071 vsSn dnoiy 1101
0005t 00°0st S0.d moys
EL°19 €L719 VSN sselsg
cE6LL cE6lLL SIUIdS oAy Mied G/g/orlezes
66°866 66°866 ou| ‘YN oelazeg
g1'8es', GL'8es’.L ovd3zvs
91'¢cs 9Les SIdS B auIp) SUBS
00°6L6°} 00°6.6'L d771 ‘seleloossy ® sejbnoq uoisald 'S
LGEB /S°E6 ou] ‘ySN neanuio) Away
¥8°LL v8'// onelewy Ao yep/Auedwon wny ybieey
87°650°'G 8%°650'S ou| *siuidg owixold
ce'LL g6’ LL ou| ‘sus|usig uowpaid
Y0ery'y v0'gry'y VSN pledly pouiad
07’85t 008Gt 1sareaN ajourydw 1S yed
06'Scl 06°Gcl Aaung g uosweg/dw| iS5 yed
871G 78IS pueig gn|D pue|s|/dw| IS Yed
00°€9.'9¢ 00°€9.°9€ Inobry snonyuids - HOQON
88°LG2 |1 88'/G2'LL Xe] S8ES - HOAON
Slcy (YA S8JIA8S UBWNY ¥ UleaH jo 1daqg ON
0L0LL'} 0L 0L L ableyaing - uoISs|IWLWOYD DgY ON
007225’} 00°L25'L jusuieq - uoissiliwo) DgY ON
99'8ce 99°'82¢ Ase|usiq Jeny Appniy
98°9€1 989¢!L ou| ‘spuelg o|[agaluo
09°006°} 09°006° "ou| ‘v AsssuusH jeop
18°062 18°062 0207 aABDY/MHIN
€L9LL €L°91L MOIWLIODIN
c6'L¥6 26° 176 S Jelsiswebep-jsep
G6°E6 G6'E6 suoduw| J9)|01S/a]BSIBN
c0'LI} cO’LLL ou| “evem SN
¥2'Ge0°t $2'G80°L 00XNn
GG'299 652589 09 seoinieg Ableug swiq
¢Sl ) A A ) pdieT
[BloL JSA0 pue 1§ 06- 19 09-1€ 0e-1 juaung



a101S NgYy ajjinsbuno

gLol8'srl$ G6'€6-$ 00°0$ 00'0% Weles  [9°069'8v1$ IVLOL
61'€22°L 6L'€ee | Wweln) weljm
9£°8G1 9e°8S1 071 ‘Bidepsiym

82'6¥S 8263 09 abelanag suuds uiLISap
05°2el 0S'LeL Kis|usiq SIIN uoplEM
AN lg'L6e slonpo.d sdlfliyd/dasn
LG9El 1S9EL sjonpold pajiasig sn
LEvwl (N4t [eQIUBYIBN LINOS UL

00°9/ 009 uonnjos ebelanag [B10 |
[E10L Ian0 pue |g 06- 19 09-1g oe-1| juaund




1}

gy aliasbunoa

101G N
i B

% £E'EE 00°009‘G- 00°00%'8 0070082 S90IAIRS PSIOBALOD JEOO SOUBUIS 26/
mmom.:.._mw paloeIluO0D OG/
% £8'E 29°06¥° LEL- 89'20.' 102 90°252'0.L slyeueq ea/ojdw3  sedlneg [euOSIad 00 [B10L
0005+ - 000st - Bugse] % p3 bumnuguog eakojdw3 g/
% 62°0L 00°0%0°L- 00°00S‘€ 00°09+'2 spuog eaojdws @ souBINSU| DM 0EL
% 9€°2E 09°250°L - 02'66€'9} 09'982G OUBINSU| YI[BSH 02/
% £5°2€ €L'6L0'6- ve L98°El AR oRy asuedx3 xe| |j0iked G|/
% 00°0€ ¥7"960°2- 00°566°2 95°868 uoyesuadwoy Jequisjy pIeog 01/
% LGHE SY'26£801- ¥2" 10S'G91 6,°801'LS sabep pue ssueles G0/
syjeuag aakoidw3 » saoIeg [BUOSISd 00/
S3SNIdX3
% G9'2L 21092501 90°189'98¢ 6'026'082 1140Hd SSOHD
% G9°/2Z /8'65€'G20° - YE'8LELIY'} L0'656' H6E ) ) ] PIOS SPA0D Jo 150D [ejoL
% LE/2 0L'vE2 1L 05°'918'000't  0v'28s'sle - se[es Jo 1500 009 [elo)
% EV'EE 65081 0595942  16'SYe'6 - s994 pIeD IpaI) yuBg 0£9
% ES°EL 05°80€ Y- 00°000'G 05169 sa)ddng 21015 029
% L2 [T L0'SLS'80L- 00°091v.6 66'779'G92 So[es JoxijN/auIp B Jonbi 049
S9[eS 40 1500 009
% SE'82 11°S2L'v6e- ¥¥'2050L¥ 19°9/€9L1 enuaAeY Uo peseq SeXeL 006 [BI0L
% 91L°9Z 16292~ 08'2LL'S £2°045°L ‘ UIpjUBIS — X2 UOREN|IqRYSY AIUNOD O3S
¥0°922°9- $0°922°9 UOIE}|IGeYSY PUE LOKEINP3 |04y 085
% £0°GZ 9/°60%- 02 L+S Py GeL (seaunosey uewnH Jo 1deq) xe| abelerag paxiN 025
% £8'82 A 0v'296°2L6€ 00" LEL YL (enuensy o "1deq) x| abeiersg paxin 01S
2nuaAsy U0 paseg saxe] 005
d10S SA00D 40 1S0D
% 0E'LE 66'6LL LEL L 00°000'708'} 10°088'229 ewoou| [eloL
% 9°8€ 06'6v2"02- 00°000°€E 0108221 soleg obeloneg poxIN 0Ly
% LT LE 60°0/8°0LL |- 00°000° L2 16°621°099 sejes Jonbr 00
JNOONI
1ebpng jo % 1ebpng lano 1ebpng [enjoy
‘_mu.mu._- . .. ‘ o - - - . . a

P
>n= aunp -
L20c auny Al

o

c0

STVLOL 1202-020¢ S[enidy "sA ljebpng



101S D@y a|iasbunoj

%000 96'c/2'€9L$ 00°0$ 96°'€/2'c91$ JNOONI L3N
%000 96°€/2'e91 000 96°€/2'€91 JNODNI DNILYHILO 13N
% 2¥°0€ 80'¥€0'692- 90°189°'98¢ 86°9¥9'LLL sesuadx3 [e10L
% 28’91 L' L0¥'28- 96°'€/0'66 ~ §9'999'0} @suadx3 JaylO 056 [e10L
% 2891 L L0¥ 28" 96°€.0'66 G9'999°01 UMO] 8y} O} pled sjoid 1G6
asuadx3 Jayl0 056
% 88'9€ G1'866'8€- Sy 8L 19 12'98/'22 sesuadxg eAjeAsIUILPY 3 [EIeUSD) 008 [B10L
L0'2ee 10'2ee swuoyun 028
% 6.°8€ ¥7'99€'e- 00°00S‘S 9g°eel'e sain 098
% 856 8/°658' |- 00°008‘2 g2 0ve suoyds|a| 658
00°00s‘2- 00°005‘2 wawdinb3 @ sjo0] |[eWS 058
% G6°0€ oozLe'ee- 00'Zle'ge 00°000°01L sjuswied ueo igaqg S¥8
% 00°SS 00°GEL- 00°00€ 00°591 xog Od % abeisod 0v8
% €0°02 6E€°86€ Y- 00°00S°S L9 LOLk se||ddng @210 S€8
% 16°9 8e'802'2- gr'ele'e #0'¥91 snoaue|[edsIN 0€8
% L€°/8 00"~ 00°005‘€ 00°950‘¢ soueInsu| Ayjiger [eieuen 028
% £6'69 LE'SOL'E- 00°000°2 68768V suopduosqng pue seng §18
90'}- 90" - safiiey) se21MeS Yueg 508
sesuadx3 aABlSIUILPY ¥ [BIBUSD) 008
% 69°L2 00°€6.L's- 00°000°8 00°£02'2 soueusjulep ¥ siiedey 08/ [EI0L
% L0E 99'6E6'2- 00°000‘€ ¥€09 ewdinb3 — soueusjuiely pue siedey 06/
% €6'2¥ ¥€'€58°2- 00°000‘G 99°'9v1'e sBuipjing — eoueUSIUIE pue siedey S8/
gouBULUB B Sieday 08/
% 85°GE 00°68€°0}- 00°02L‘9L 00°GeL‘S SedIAeg peloenuo) 05/ [e10L
% L9792 00°0¥9°2- 00°009°€ 00096 loge Aesodwa) 022
% ¥6° LY 00'stL'e- 00°02}'Y 00°6/6°L (Aeuwony 1 Joupny) seoIAIS [BUOISSBJ0Id G9/L
“1ebpng j0 % 106png JeAo 196png [emoy B

[e10L




)

X
W
N

% 00001 000 00°004'Z 00°004°2 SS0IAIS PBIOBIILOD J8JYO S0UBLIS G/
SNBSS Umwombcoo 0s/.
% 8E'E6 6E0VE'S- 89'S21'0S 62'580' Ly syjeueq eefojdwiz B sedlleg [euosIed 0L [El01
o 00°051 o 00051 ~ bBugsey g p3 bumujuop sehodwz gez
% ¥1°192 66°601"L 10°628 005822 spuog safo|dwig g souBINSU| DM 0EL
% 82'98 0%'095- 08'780'% Ov'ves'e S0UBINSU| YesH 0Z.
% 19'G8 0" L8Y- 28 1PE'S 8/°098'2 asuadx3 xe] |joiked G/
% 19°98 8.°66- v '8%L 96'879 uoyesusdwwog Jequis|y preog 01/
% L6°06 91'65/'€- LE'SLE LY §1'919'/€ sebep pue seLeeS G0/
Slilsueg m®>0_n_rcm ¥ S8dInBS |euosiad 00/
S3ISNIdX3
% 11’82k 98'1L1'/2 £2°0/9'96 60°2¥8'EZ} 1140Hd SSOHD
% 86601 vZ Lye'se 9/°62'7S€E 00°£29'68€ PIOS SPooD J0 1500 [el0).
% 85801 61'965° 12 AT £€'00€'€L2 Sees J0 1500 009 [E0L
% 2,00} LL 6 EL'7L6' ¥8'€96'9 S99 pieD IPaID dUeg 0€9
% 2€°9S 1G°8G5- L0'052' 0S°169 se||ddng 81015 029
% 80°60k 6670122 00°0¥S'Er2Z 66'779'692 Se[ES JOXIN/BUIM B Jonbr] 019
SO[ES J0 10D 009
% Ov'ELL S0'LSLEL 29'629'20L  /9'9/8'911 enueAeY o peseg sexeL 00 [e10L
% $9¥0L 20°29 L2 Erp L £2°015°L UlpuEl — XB] uojeNiqeyey Aunog ovs
25°965" - 25955} UoUEl|IqeLSY PUE UOIBINDT [OYOOY 0ES
% 01°00} 710 0g'sel ¥y Gel (seoinosay uewnH jo 1deq) xe) ebeiensg paxIN 025
% ZE'SLL L 0b2'S 1 650666 00" LEL 'Y LL (enusnay jo 'ideq) xe| abeianag PaxI 015
anuaAsy Uo paseg SexXe| 009
a10s SA00D 40 1S09
% 98'EkL 0161529 66'666'057  60'6ISELS awoou [ejoL
% SSPS L 0L°00S'Y 00°052°8 0L'0S2°2) se[es obeianag paxiy 0Ly
% 0LELL 00°610'8S 66'67L 2y 66'892°00S se[es Jonbr 00
JNOONI
1ebpng jo %% 1eBpng Jano 1ebpng [enoy
®EloL - R o
020¢ ‘lsqualdag - AInp

31Vad OL L202-0c0¢ S|enidy "SA jebpng



21013 0Qgy 3|nsbunoA

%000 99°/25'6v$ 00°0$ 99°/25'67$ JNOONI L3N
%00°0 99°/25'6¥ 000 99°/25'6h JNOONI DNILYHIHO L3N
% 18°9/ 08's5€e'2e- £2°0.9'96 EYPIEVL sesuadx3 [e10]
% LE0F 67'89.'v |- 8189/ 'v2 666666 - asuedx3 JoUlO 056 [e10L
% LEOF 67°89L'7 |- 8%'89.'ve 66'666'6 UMO | U} O} ped sujold 156
asuadx3 Jay10 066
% 2L L 26°'89¢€'p- L0°9vY'SL SLZL0'LL sesuedx3 eAeASIUIIPY B [eJoueD) 008 [eloL
L0'2EE o L0'2€E ‘ suuoyun 0/8
% G6°901 85°G6 66'7LE | 1S°0L%') senun 098
% 89°66 9ze- 66'669 £1°169 suoydsje) g58
66'729- 66729 wawdinb3 % sjoo] |[BWS 058
10'820°8- 10'8£0'8 sjuswhed ueo 1geq S+
% 00°022 0006 00'S. 00°591 xog Od % abeisod 0t
% G§'G9 v9'eL- 66'7LEL GE'1L06 sel|ddng 8040 g8
% LELE 10°925- 01'€65 60°29 snoaue|@osiy 0£8
% S2'67E 660842 10°S.8 00'950°€ aoueInsu| Ayjiger] [eisusn 0z8
% 14082 /€92 66'67L L 0v'L8E'Y suopduosgns pue senq 18
sesuadx3 aAeASIUILPY B [BJoUaD) 008
% G8°/9 LOEPO- 10°000°2 00°/S€‘L eoueUBUIR % Siiedey 08/ [Bl0L
% S0'8 99'689- 00°0SZ #€°09 juswdinb3 — soueusjuiep pue siredey 06/
% £2°€01 G9'9% 10°052 ) 99'962° sbuipjing — soueusjuie|y pue siiedey 58/
Q0UBUSUIBIN B m.__mamm 08/,
% 86811 10'G9Z 66'620'y 00°S6.L'Y SO0IAISS peloenuo) 05/ 101
% 00°08 00°081- 00006 00°02. - Joqe Aresodwe) 07/
% GL 161 L0'S¥6 66'620" 00°G.6't (Aoulony 3 JoupNy) S82IASS [BUOISS8}0Id G9/
“1e6png Jo % 1e6png Jeao ~ 1ebpng enoy B

[elol







* © Youngsville ABC Board
P. O. Box 387

101 N College Street

Youngsville, NC 27596

ABC (919) 556-3590
ABCStore@townofyoungsville.org

MINUTES

OCTOBER 2, 2020
9:00 AM

REGULAR MEETING

YOUNGSVILLE TOWN HALL CONFERENCE ROOM

134 US 1A SOUTH
(Teleconference and Web Conference was available)

Chairman Houser called the Board Meeting of the Town of Youngsville ABC Board to
order at 9:05am. In attendance was Chairman Rick Houser (by teleconference), Members
Mary Margaret Norman (by teleconference), and Danny Stutzman (by teleconference).
Also, in attendance was Town Administrator Phillip Cordeiro, Finance Officer Jaclyn
Patterson, ABC Store Manager Laurie Pritchett (by teleconference) and Town Clerk
Emily Hurd. Guests included Michael Wallace of 5-Points Shopping Plaza and Lee
Grissom of S Preston Douglas & Associates, LLP.

The first item was to approve the Agenda.
MOTION: TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS SUBMITTED

The motion was made by Member Norman and was seconded by Member Houser. The
motion passed unanimously.

Chairman Houser read the Ethics Statement.

In accordance with G.S. 18B-201, it is the duty of every Board Member to avoid both
conflicts of interest and appearances of conflicts. Does any member have any known
conflict of interest or appearance of conflict with respect to any matters coming before
the Board today? If so, please identify the conflict or appearance of conflict and refrain
from any undue participation in the particular matter involved.

There were no conflicts of interest or appearances of conflicts.



*0 Youngsville ABC Board
P. O. Box 387

101 N College Street

Youngsville, NC 27596

ABC (919) 556-3590

ABCStore@townofyoungsville.org

The next item on the agenda was Citizens” Comments. Cordeiro polled those on
teleconference and Hurd stated no one had registered to speak. There were no comments.

The next item on the agenda was the Financial Report, including a presentation on the
FYE 2020 Audit Reports. Patterson introduced Lee Grissom of S Preston Douglas and
Associates, LLP. She explained Mr. Grissom oversaw the ABC Store audit, though she
mostly worked with Austin Eubanks.

Mr. Grissom stated his company does the audit for approximately twelve ABC Boards
across the state. The Youngsville ABC Board received a clean audit opinion. Overall,
the finances were in great shape and well organized. Mr. Grissom stated information was
received in a timely manner with no issues from management. There were no new
policies or illegal acts. He stated there was positive operating information. Mr. Grissom
noted FYE 2019 had the purchase of the land and debt but FYE 2020 was
straightforward.

Mr. Grissom stated there was one finding, noting the ABC Board and Patterson could do
better with the budget and amendments. Page 18 showed the Budget to Actual Schedule
and he noted several instances that could have been corrected with Budget Amendments.
Patterson explained, based on her conversations with Laurie Lee of the NC ABC
Commission, there was some confusion on the need for acerual books and cash basis
budgeting. Now, based on the information received by Mr. Eubanks, she knows it can be
handled differently using accrual-based accounting for everything and she will be able to
keep it updated going forward. When asked, Patterson stated that everyone knew about
the cash register purchase.

Chairman Houser inquired about the $25,000 for Capital Outlay and Mr. Grissom stated
it looked as if everyone was aware of the cash register purchase and approved the
expense. Patterson explained that she didn’t know the budget was supposed to be done
on a cash basis at the time so that is why it was not shown on the budget. Cordeiro
inquired if Patterson was going to put the cash registers under capital assets and show
depreciation on them instead of expensing them and Patterson stated yes. Patterson
stated that was where they were currently located on the balance sheet.

Mr. Grissom stated the distribution for the current fiscal year should be based on
historical information to predict the number. He noted the final budget figured was
$80,834 while the previous budget was over $100,000. Patterson explained the
difference was due to the cash basis budget versus accrual accounting again.



* & Youngsville ABC Board
P. O. Box 387

101 N College Street

Youngsville, NC 27596

ABC (919) 556-3590

ABCStore@townofyoungsville.org

Chairman Houser stated, based on this information, the ABC Board needed to prepare
their budgets at the beginning of the year based on what the minimal distribution will be.
If they make more money, then it can be amended at that time. Cordeiro stated that was
how they budgeted for the current fiscal year.

Mr. Grissom stated operating revenues were $1,804,548, up 28% from last year. He
noted this was trending positively over the past few years. Retail liquor sales were up
28% and the income from operations was $153,000, up 38% from the prior year. The
total distribution to the Town was $115,693, compared to $97,363 last year. There were
no significant purchases or debt. Mr. Grissom stated inventory went well and there were
no issues with the year end walk through and count. He stated Youngsville was better
than most. The only problems were related to the budget itself, which has already been
discussed.

On page 5, Mr. Grissom stated the investment and capital assets were correct. Capital
assets of $211,364 minus debt of $173,809 equaled $37,555. Patterson noted she and Mr.
Eubanks had to work to get the financials right. Mr. Grissom stated management did a
great job with information sharing. Patterson stated they spent a long time on liabilities.
She explained the loan was renewed since it was a construction loan that needed to be
shifted over to a regular loan.

Chairman Houser reminded the ABC Board that Laurie Lee and Greg Stallings of the NC
ABC Commission had cautioned them on the level of working capital needed. He asked
Mr. Grissom how Youngsville compared to the other ABC Boards they audited. Mr.
Grissom stated Youngsville was very comparable. He noted the distribution to the Town
could be reduced if they wanted to retain more working capital, but Youngsville was very
much in line with other ABC Boards. Chairman Houser cautioned the ABC Board that if
there was an unexpected expense, they would be hard pressed to cover it. Mr. Grissom
agreed, noting it was always better to have a cushion.

MOTION: TO APPROVE THE AUDIT AS PRESENTED
The motion was made by Member Stutzman and was seconded by Member Norman. The

motion passed unanimously. Chairman Houser thanked Mr. Grissom for his hard work
and joining the meeting to present his findings.



*o Youngsville ABC Board
P. O. Box 387

101 N College Street

Youngsville, NC 27596

ABC (919) 556-3590

ABCStore@townofyoungsville.org

The next item on the agenda was the approval of the Consent Agenda. The Consent
Agenda included Minutes from the ABC Board Regular Meeting on September 4, 2020
and the Minutes from the ABC Board Special Called Meeting on September 14, 2020.

MOTION: TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA

The motion was made by Member Norman and was seconded by Member Stutzman. The
motion passed unanimously.

The next item on the agenda was Old Business. The first item under Old Business was to
consider the contract to sell the ABC Store property to the upset bid winner. Cordeiro
stated the upset bid process has been completed. He stated there were no upset bids after
the first 10-day period. All legal requirements have been satisfied. The current price is
$395,000 and the seller has entered the due diligence portion of the sale, including
working with his attorney to prepare the documents for the closing process. At this time,
there is no action required other than indicating if the ABC Board is still interested in
proceeding. Cordeiro explained the ABC Board would vote during their November
Board Meeting to formally accept the offer and direct them to proceed. He anticipates
being able to close before Thanksgiving,

Member Norman inquired if there was any way to guarantee the purchaser would build a
facility that includes retail space the ABC Store could move back to. Cordeiro stated no,
however, they were in negotiations with Mr. Wallace at 5-Points Plaza to move to that
location for the short-term. Member Norman stated she didn’t want to lose the
opportunity by selling the land and possibly be out of the perfect spot. Member Stutzman
stated the 5-Points Plaza is still basically in the same downtown area. Member Norman
worried that parking would be worse, but Member Stutzman stated he felt it would better,
He explained the delivery truck would be at the back of the building which will solve one
of their current problems. Member Stutzman noted the location was also larger than the
current ABC Store. He stated he was good with selling the property if they maintain a
presence in downtown.

The second item under Old Business was to continue the discussion on the proposed
remodel of the ABC Store, with a report from the Store Expansion / Renovation
Subcommittee. Chairman Houser noted the 5-Points Plaza lease was for 4,068 square
feet, approximately double the current area. The full lease is ten years, with two five-
year options to renew, for a total of twenty years. Rent will be approximately $11 per
square feet, with a proposed 3% annual increase, with an estimated shared common area

4



* [ Youngsville ABC Board
P. O. Box 387

101 N College Street

Youngsville, NC 27596

ABC (919) 556-3590

ABCStore@townofyoungsville.org

maintenance expenses would be equal to $4 per square foot. With all of that considered,
they were looking at approximately $15 per square foot. Chairman Houser stated
renovations could be completed by March of next year. They also needed to follow
through with the sale of the propetty, noting that if the sale fell through, there was no
need to rent at 5-Points Plaza. Chairman Houser stated he has posted the public notice
sign on the property to get ahead of the game. A proposed drawing will need to be
submitted to Rick Turner for the upfit, which will include shelving and fixtures. Mr.
Turner charges approximately $2,500 to do a full layout for the landlord. Once the ABC
Board approves the fees, Patterson can engage Mr, Turner.

Chairman Houser stated he has kept Ms. Lee up to date on the progress so far. Cordeiro
noted there were a variety of reasons for moving to the 5-Points Plaza. The larger
warehouse will help them increase inventory and allow them to service new customers.
As there is a new restaurant coming to town, their mixed beverage sales will also
increase. There will be more room to allow them to grow.

Cordeiro stated they can delay the sale and still help the purchaser achieve his goals for
tax benefits. If the sale is delayed into November through January, this will give the
purchaser time to nominate properties and complete the sale in six months. It would help
the ABC Store avoid paying rent for a few extra months. Cordeiro stated the purchaser
doesn’t care as much about the rent as he does acquiring the property for the tax benefits.

Member Norman expressed concerns about the ten-year lease locking them in with the
possibility of missing out on moving back across the street. She inquired about penalties
should they break the lease. Chairman Houser stated with authorization from the ABC
Board, they can continue to negotiate with Mr. Wallace regarding the 5-Points Plaza
location. Member Norman felt that five years would be best, noting it would take a few
years to get the new building constructed. Chairman Houser stated he would continue to
work with Cordeiro and Mr, Wallace in negotiations.

Member Stutzman inquired about the maintenance, especially regarding the HVAC unit.
Mr. Wallace explained, per the proposed lease, it would be the responsibility of the tenant
to maintain and repair the HVAC unit in order to keep the rent low. However,
maintenance can be negotiated into the lease, but it would increase the rent. When asked,
Mr. Wallace stated the unit had last been replaced in late 2017. As they last
approximately seven to ten years, Cordeiro stated they may be able to go through the
entire lease without needing to replace the unit. Mr. Wallace stated the previous owner
had the units replaced so he was unsure of the costs.



*o Youngsville ABC Board
P. O. Box 387

101 N College Street

Youngsville, NC 27596

ABC (919) 556-3590

ABCStore@townofyoungsville.org

Chairman Houser stated this was like what Benchmark Bank did when they rented their
facilities. He stated they had the facility inspected to make sure it was in good shape
before signing the lease. Chairman Houser noted it was typical for tenants to handle
semi-annual maintenance. Member Stutzman expressed concerns about having to pay to
replace the entire unit should it go out in a few years. He noted he understood the need to
keep rental fees low but felt they may want to discuss this option in detail again.
Cordeiro stated he could get the Town’s HVAC vendor to inspect the unit and assess any
risks. He noted that if they tried to put the maintenance on the realtor, they would see a
premium in the lease.

Chairman Houser inquired if Member Stutzman would be allowed to get involved with
the negotiations or if that would constitute a quorum. Cordeiro explained with the
current three Members, it would create a quorum. He noted there were candidates that
would be presented to the Town Board next week that should bring the ABC Board up to
four Members, which would allow for a two-person committee.

Member Norman asked for clarification on maintaining / repairing the HVAC unit.
Cordeiro explained if only one part failed, they may be able to repair it for a small fee.
However, sometimes replacing the unit can be cheaper than fixing it. He stated the
responsibility for maintaining it would fall on the ABC Board.

Chairman Houser asked if the ABC Board agreed for them to continue working on
getting a proposed layout completed in anticipation for the sale of the property.
Everyone agreed to move forward.

The next item on the agenda was New Business. There was no New Business.

The next item on the agenda was Reports and Other Business.

When asked, Pritchett stated most of the customers were wearing masks.

Chairman Houser thanked Hurd, Patterson and Cordeiro for all the work they do for the
ABC Board.

Member Norman stated this would be her last meeting. She stated that it has been fun, as
well as educational, and thanked everyone. Chairman Houser stated he has enjoyed



* o Youngsville ABC Board
P. O. Box 387

101 N College Street

Youngsville, NC 27596

ABC (919) 556-3590

ABCStore@townofyoungsville.org

working with her and noted she added a unique perspective to things. Both Pritchett and
Member Stutzman also thanked Member Norman for her service.

Member Stutzman stated he was greeted by one of the cashiers when he went into the
ABC Store. He noted their customer service was very good. Member Stutzman stated
the ABC Store was very busy and looked good.

Chairman Houser inquired how orders were going. Pritchett explained their last order
included 746 cases, but they only received 490 of those. She noted there were still supply
issues. The tequila shortage has affected the restaurant since the popular items are not
coming in. Pritchett stated they have been ordering alternate items and the restaurant
understood they were doing their best. Chaitman Houser stated he knew there was also a
shortage for Crown Royal Apple. Pritchett explained Crown Royal Peach would become
a regular item starting in January. She stated they are trying to get the items that
customers want but their hands are tied.

Member Norman asked how requests were handled and Pritchett stated she normally calls
the person and gave an example. Pritchett stated she often does special orders, noting it
was the only way to get bourbons that people haven’t seen before.

Chairman Houser asked Pritchett if she could order 1,000 cases to see how many she can
get in. He stated he wanted to increase the inventory levels based on sales. Pritchett
worried that if she did get the full order, she would not have room in the warehouse. She
explained the average order before Covid 19 was 400 cases, now she orders 700 — 800
cases. Pritchett stated she is trying to order extra to make sure they have enough supply
between shipments.

Chairman Houser noted Pritchett has done a great job of reducing payroll over the last
two months. He understood it would increase again around the holiday season.

Pritchett wanted to mention the shelving for the new ABC Stores should not include a
fifth shelf as they were too tall for most customers, using the Franklinton ABC Store as
an example. She felt the top shelf should be eye level for the average person. Chairman
Houser stated they would have a more in-depth conversation once the plans came back
from Mr. Turner.

Cordeiro inquired about ethics training and Member Stutzman stated he would have that
completed by the end of the weekend. Cordeiro stated there were additional candidates



*o Youngsville ABC Board
P. O. Box 387

101 N College Street

Youngsville, NC 27596

ABC (919) 556-3590

ABCStore@townofyoungsville.org

for the General Manager position but he had no further updates at this time. He stated he
would forward updates to the ABC Board as he progressed. Cordeiro stated there were
also a couple of applications for the ABC Board that will be brought before the Town
Board next week. He will keep the ABC Board up to date as that moved forward as well.

Chairman Houser noted the process was very thorough and professional. Cordeiro stated
he modeled the process after the professional firms. He stated he would continue to be
aggressive in his search to make sure they end up with the most highly qualified
individual to help the ABC Board achieve their goals.

The next item on the agenda was Closed Session. Chairman Houser felt there was no need
to go into Closed Session at this time. Hurd stated minutes could be approved at a later
Closed Session.

The meeting adjourned at 9:54am upon a motion made by Member Norman, seconded by
Member Stutzman and passed unanimously.



This instrument prepared by: James S. Warren, a licensed North Carolina attorney. Delinquent taxes, if any, to
be paid by the closing attorney to the county tax collector upon disbursement of closing proceeds.

RETURN TO: Warren, Shackleford & Thomas P.L.L.C.

PREPARED BY and RETURN TO: Warren, Shackleford & Thomas P.L.L.C.
343 S. White Street, Wake Forest, NC 27587

TAX IDENTIFICATION #: __005947 AND 008407 REVENUE STAMPS $_0.00

NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL WARRANTY DEED

This deed made this 6th day of October, 2020 by and between:
GRANTOR: YOUNGSVILLE BOARD OF ALCOHOLIC CONTROL

GRANTEE: WW PROPERTIES & RENTALS, LLC
P.O. Box 1528, Henderson, NC 27536

Grantor, for valuable consideration paid by Grantee, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, does grant, convey
and transfer unto Grantee in fee simple the property described as follows:

TOWNSHIP OF , COUNTY OF FRANKLIN

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "A"

The above property was acquired by Grantor by instrument recorded in Book 827. Page 490 and Book 2177,
Page 363,

All or a portion of the property herein conveyed __ includes or _X does not include the primary residence of a
Grantor,

Page 1 of 2



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described property and all privileges and appurtenances thereto belonging
to the Grantee in fee simple.

Grantor covenants with Grantee, that Grantor is seized of the premises in fee simple, has the right to convey the
same in fee simple, that title is marketable and free and clear of all encumbrances, and that Grantor will warrant
and defend the title to the property against the lawful claims of all others except for the exceptions set out below.

Title to the property described herein is subject to the following exceptions:

1. Subject to Easements and Restrictions of record.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, Grantor has set his hand and seal, or if corporate, has caused this instrument to be
signed in its corporate name by a duly authorized officer.

YOUNGSVILLE BOARD OF ALCOHOLIC CONTROL

By: (SEAL)

, Chairman

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA, COUNTY OF

l, » @ Notary Public for the County of State of North
Carolina, certify that personally appeared before me this day
and acknowledged that he/she is Chairman of Youngsville Board of Alcoholic Control, a North Carolina
Limited Liability Company and that by authority duly given, the foregoing instrument was signed by him/her in
the Company name as the act of the Company.

Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this the day of 2020.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

Page 2 of 2



* #1147 N, B89 deg. 20 min. K,

‘voint in the center of U, 8, Highway No, 1-4;

- August 25, 1983,

EXHIBIT "A"

TRACT 1:

Beginning at the voint whare .the center line of U, 3,

’ 1

Highway No. 1-A 1ntaraautai

the center line of S. R, #llgg, :
L]

and runs thence along the center line of S, R,
61 feot to an iron pin; thence along ths line
of Mary G. Gorpening N, 00 deg. 40 min. E. 140 fest to an iron astake; thence
continuing along the Corpening line 8. 89 deg, 20 min, E. 331.45 faet to a
thence along the center of U. S, i
Righway Mo. 1-A the following courses and distances: 5. U deg, 10 min. 51 :
800. W, U649 feot to a polnt, 3, 18 deg, 52 min, 38 sec, W, L,.7.85 feot to o

voint and 8. 24 deg, 14 min. 03 seo. W. 51.68 feet to the voint of beginning, \
and containing one (1) mcre and designated as Parcel A on plat entitled "ilap 3
°reoared for Baxter X, Patterson Heirs" made by James 0. Murohy, R.L.S.,

See deed recorded in Book 827, Page 490.

TRACT 2:

Being all of the 1.83 acre lot as shown on plat entitled "A & M Investments", a copy of
which is recorded in Book of Maps 2014 Page 164 Franklin County Registry,

See deed recorded in Book 2177, Page 363.



OWNER AFFIDAVIT AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT
(NO RECENT IMPROVEMENTS AND NO EXECUTORY CONTRACTS FOR IMPROVEMENTS)

PARTIES: All parties identified in this section must execute this Agreement.

Owner: Youngsville Board of Alcoholic Control
(NOTE: There can be more than one Owner if the Property has been awned by multiple parties or has been conveyed within the 120-Day Lien Period. A separale
Agreement is required for each successive owner in the 120-Day Lien Period.)

PROPERTY:

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "A",

(Insert street address or brief description and/or attach a description as Exhibit A. Include here any real eslale that is a portion of a larger, previously unsegregated
Iract when that area is reasonably necessary for the convenient use and oceupation of Improvements on the larger tract.)

DEFINITIONS: The following capitalized terms as used In this Agreement shall have the following meanings:
e Improvement: All or any part of any building, structure, erection, alleraion, demolition, excavation, clearing, grading, filling, or landscaping, including trees and
shrubbery, driveways, and privale roadways on the Property as defined below.
o Labor, Services or Materials: Labor or professional design (including architectural, engineering, landscaping) or surveying services or materials or rental equipment
for which alien can be claimed under NCGS Chapler 44A, Article 2.
Conlractor: Any person or entily who has performed or furnished or has contracled to perform or furnish Labor, Services or Malerials pursuant to a contract, either
express orimplied, with the Owner of real property for the making of an Improvement thereon, (Note that services by architects, engineers, landscapers, surveyors,
furnishers of rental equipment and contracls for construction on Property of Improvements are often provided before there is visible evidence of construclion.)
120-Day Lien Period: The 120 days immediately preceding the dale of recordation of the latler of the deed to purchaser or deed of trust to tender in the Office of the
Register of Deeds of the county in which the Praperty is located.
= Owner: Any person or enlily, as defined in NCGS Chapter 44A, Arlicle 2, who has or has had any intereslin the Property within the 120-Day Lien Period. For the
purposes of this Agreement, the term Owner includes: (i) aseller of the Properly or a borrower under a loan agreement secured by the Property; (ii) a person wilh
rights lo purchase the Property under a contract and for whom an Improvement is made and who ordered the Improvement to be made; and {ili) the Owner's
successors in interest and agents of the Owner acting within their authority.
» Company: The litle insurance company providing the litle policy for the transaction contemplated by the parties herein.
= Properly: The real estate described above or on Exhibit A and any leaseholds, tenements, hereditaments, and improvements placed thereon.
= All defined terms shall include the singular or plural as required by conlex.

AGREEMENT: For good and valuable consideration, the receipl and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and as an inducement to the purchase of the Property
by a purchaser and/or the making of a loan by a lender secured by a deed of lrust encumbering the Property and the issuance of a tille insurance palicy or policies by
Company insuring title to the Properly wilhout exception to liens for Labor, Services or Materials; Owner first being duly sworn, deposes, says and agrees:

1. Certifications: Owner cerfifies thal at no time during the 120-Day Lien Period have any Labor, Services or Materials been furnished in connection with a contragt,
express or implied, for Improvements to the Property (including architectural, engineering, landscaping or surveying services or malerials or rental equipment for which a lien
can be claimed under NGGS Chapter 44A) nor have any Labor, Services or Materials been furnished on the Property prior to the 120-Day Lien Period that will o may be
compleled after the date of this affidavit OR only minor repairs andfor alteralions to pre-existing Impravemenls have been made and Owner ceriifies such repairs and/or
allerations have been completed and those providing Labor, Services or Materials for the repairs have been paid in full,

2. Reliance and Indemnification: This Agreement may be relied upon by the purchaserin the purchase of the Property, a lender lo make a loan secured by a deed of
trust encumbering the Properly and by Company in issuance of a tille insurance policy or policies insuring title Lo the Praperty without exception to malters certified in this
Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement shall survive the disbursement of funds and closing of this lransaction and shall be binding upon Owner and anyone claiming
by, through or under Owner.

Owner agrees to indemnify and hold purchaser, lender, and Company harmless of and from any and all loss, cost, damage and expense of every kind, and attorney's fees,
costs and expenses, which the purchaser, lender or Company shall or may incur or become liable for, direclly or indireclly, as a result of reliange on the cerlifications of
Owner made herein or in enforcement of the Company's rights hereunder.

3. NCLTA Copyright and Entire Agreement: This Agreement and any allachments hereto represent the entire agreement between the Owner and the Company, and
no prior or contemporaneous agreement or understanding inconsistent herewith {whether oral or written) pertaining to such matlers is effective.

© North Carolina Land Title Association, May 2010
Form No. 1: OWNER AFFIDAVIT AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT (NO RECENT IMPROVEMENTS)



THIS IS A COPYRIGHT FORM and any variances in the form provisions hereof must be specifically staled in the blank below and agreed to in writing by the Company.

No modification of this Agreement, and no waiver of any of its terms or conditions, shall be effective unless made in wriling and approved by the Company. |

PROVIDING A FALSE AFFIDAVIT IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE

EXECUTION BY. OWNER

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA COUNTY OF
Youngsville Board of Alcohollc Control I, a notary Public of the County of and State aforesaid certify that
personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged
that he/she is General Manager of Youngsville Board of Alcoholic Control a North Carolina
Limited Liability Company and that by authority duly given, the foregoing instrument was signed

by him/her in the Company name as the act of the Company. g
By: g
: . S
Printed or Typed Name/Tile: Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this _____day of __ 2020. |
General Manager §

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

© North Carolina Land Tille Associalion, May 2010
Form No. 1: OWNER AFFIDAVIT AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT (NO RECENT IMPROVEMENTS)



EXHIBIT "A"

TRACT 1:

Beginning at the polnt whers .the center line of U. 3. Highway No. 1-A 1nbaraenta\
the center line of S. R, #llug, and runs thence along the center line of S. R,

© #1107 N. B9 deg. 20 min, W. 28L.61 feet to an iron pin; thence along the 1line \
of Mary . Corpening N. 00 deg. 4O min. E. 140 feet to an iron atake; thence
continuing along the Corpening line S. 89 deg, 20 min. E. 331.45 feet to a !

"voint in the center of U. 8, Highway No. l-4; thence along the center of U. S, \
Righway Mo. l-A the following courses and distances: 3. 1 deg. 10 min. 51 ¥
ssc. W. 4849 feet to a point, S. 18 deg. 53 min., 38 mec. W. 47.B5 feet to a !
polnt and 8. 2l deg, 1l min. 03 sec. W. 51.68 feet to the voint of beginning,
and containing one (1) acre and designated as Parcel A on olat entitled "ilap

1
“revared for Baxter M. Zatterson Helrs" made by James 0. Hurohy, R.L.S., i
. Avgust 25, 1983, :

See deed recorded in Book 827, Page 490.

TRACT 2;

Being all of the 1.83 acre lot as shown on plat entitled "A & M Investments", a copy of
which is recorded in Book of Maps 2014 Page 164 Franklin County Registry.

See deed recorded in Book 2177, Page 363.



Exhibit B

e Tenant has an option to terminate contract with 60 Day notice at any point during the Lease term
with no penalty assessed to Tenant.

e Landlord agrees not to interrupt the tenants’ business practice during any development that may
take place during this Lease term.



-y



COMMERCIAL LEASE AGREEMENT

REALTDRS®
(Single Tenant Facility)

CommercialAlliance
REALTOR® North Carolina Association
of REALTORS®
(Note: This form is not intended to be used as a Sublease and SHOULD NOT be used in Sublease circumstances)

THIS COMMERCIAL LEASE AGREEMENT, including any and all addenda attached hereto ("Lease"), is by and between

WW Properties and Rentals s
a(n) LLC ("Landlord"),
(individual or State of formation and type of entity)
whose address is 715 S Garnett Street, Henderson, NC 27536 , and
Youngsville Board of Alcoholic Beverage Control ,
a(n) ("Tenant™).
(individual or State of formation and type of entity)
whose address is 101 N College St, Youngsville, NC

[ ]1f this box is checked, the obligations of Tenant under this Lease are secured by the guaranty of
(name(s) of guarantor(s)) attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
(Note: Any guaranty should be prepared by an attorney at law.)

For and in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency
of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

PREMISES
1. Landlord leases unto Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases and takes upon the terms and conditions which hereinafter appear, the
following described property, including any improvements located thereon (herein afler called the "Premises"), to wit:

(Address): 101 N College St, Youngsville, NC

[X] All[ ] A portion of the property in Deed Reference: Book 827 , Page No. 490 ; Franklin

County; consisting of approximately acres.

Plat Reference: Lot(s) n/a , Block or Section n/a , as shown on Plat Book or Slide
n/a at Page(s) n/a ; n/a County, consisting of 9899 acres.

[ ]If this box is checked, Premises shall mean that property described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herewith by
reference.

(For information purposes only, the tax parcel number of the Premises is: 008407 )

[ ] Occupancy Limitation: If this box is checked, notwithstanding any greater occupancy of the Premises which may be permitted by
any law, statute, ordinance, regulation, rule (including rules enacted pursuant to any private use restrictions), as the same may be

amended from time to time, Tenant shall not allow occupancy of the Premises to exceed persons per square feet
in the Premises at any one time.

TERM

2. The term of this Lease shall commence on November 6 ,2020 ("Lease Commencement Date"), and shall end at
11:59 p.m. (based upon the time at the locale of the Premises) on November § , 2021 , unless sooner terminated as

herein provided. The first Lease Year Anniversary shall be the date twelve (12) calendar months after the first day of the first full
month immediately following the L.ease Commencement Date and successive Lease Year Anniversaries shall be the date twelve (12)
calendar months from the previous Lease Year Anniversary.

[ ]1f this box is checked, Tenant shall have the option of renewing this Lease, upon written notice given to Landlord at least

days prior to the end of the then expiring term of this Lease, for additional term(s) of years each.
Page 1 of 12
] North Carolina Association of REALTORS®, Inc. STANDARD FORM 592-T
I A Revised 7/2020
REALTOR® Tenant Initials Landlord Initials Eﬁ:&:ﬁﬂw © 7/2020
W Properties, 236 Dabmey Drive Henderson NC 27536 Phone: 252-492-8777 Fax: 101 N College St

Daniel White Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.ziplLogix.com



[ ]If this box is checked, Tenant shall have the option of renewing this Lease, upon written notice given to Landlord at least
days prior to the end of the then expiring term of this Lease, for additional term(s) as specified on Exhibit B.

| | Option to Lease- If this box is checked, Tenant, upon the payment of the sum of § (which sum is not rental
or security deposit hereunder, but is consideration for this Option to Lease and is non-refundable under any circumstances) shall have
a period of days prior to the Lease Commencement Date ("Option Period") in which to inspect the Premises and make
inquiry regarding such sign regulations, zoning regulations, utility availability, private restrictions or permits or other regulatory
requirements as Tenant may deem appropriate to satisfy itself as to the use of the Premises for Tenant's intended purposes. Tenant shall
conduct all such on-site inspections, examinations, inquiries and other review of the Premises in a good and workman like manner, shall
repair any damage to the Premises caused by Tenant's entry and on-site inspections and shall conduct same in a manner that does not
unreasonably interfere with Landlord's or any tenant's use and enjoyment of the Premises. In that respect, Tenant shall make reasonable
efforts to undertake on-site inspections outside of the hours any tenant's business is open to the public and shall give prior notice to the
tenant at the Premises of any entry onto the Premises for the purpose of conducting inspections. Upon Landlord's request, Tenant shall
provide to Landlord evidence of general liability insurance. Tenant shall also have a right to review and inspect all contracts or other
agreements affecting or related directly to the Premises and shall be entitled to review such books and records of Landlord that relate
directly to the operation and maintenance of the Premises, provided, however, that Tenant shall not disclose any information regarding the
Premises (or any tenant therein) unless required by law and the same shall be regarded as confidential, to any person, except to its
attorneys, accountants, lenders and other professional advisors, in which case Tenant shall obtain their agreement to maintain such
confidentiality. Tenant assumes all responsibility for the acts of itself, its agents or representatives in exercising its rights under this Option
to Lease and agrees to indemnify and hold Seller harmless from any damages resulting therefrom. This indemnification obligation of
Tenant shall survive the termination of this Option to Lease or this Lease. Tenant shall, at Tenant's expense, promptly repair any damage to
the Premises caused by Tenant's entry and on-site inspections. IF TENANT CHOOSES NOT TO LEASE THE PREMISES, FOR
ANY REASON OR NO REASON, AND PROVIDES WRITTEN NOTICE TO LANDLORD THEREOF PRIOR TO THE
EXPIRATION OF THE OPTION PERIOD, THEN THIS LEASE SHALL TERMINATE AND NEITHER PARTY SHALL
HAVE ANY FURTHER OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER AND LANDLORD SHALL RETURN TO TENANT ANY RENTAL
OR SECURITY DEPOSIT PAID TO LANDLORD HEREUNDER. Tenant shall be deemed to have exercised its Option to Lease and
to be bound under the terms of this Lease if (i) Tenant shall occupy the Premises prior to the expiration of the Option Period, whereupon
the date of occupancy shall be deemed the Lease Commencement Date, or (ii) Tenant shall not provide written notice to Landlord of its
termination of this Lease prior to the expiration of the Option Period.

RENTAL

3. Beginning on November 6, 2020 ("Rent Commencement Date"), Tenant agrees to pay Landlord (or its
Agent as directed by Landlord), without notice, demand, deduction or set off, an annual rental of $ 28,800.00 ;
payable in equal monthly installments of $ 2,400.00 , in advance on the first day of each calendar month

during the term hereof. Upon execution of this Lease, Tenant shall pay to Landlord the first monthly installment of rent due hereunder.
Rental for any period during the term hereof which is less than one month shall be the pro-rated portion of the monthly installment of
rental due, based upon a 30 day month.

[ ]Tf this box is checked, the annual rental payable hereunder (and accordingly the monthly installments) shall be adjusted every

Lease Year Anniversary by % over the amount then payable hereunder. In the event renewal of this Lease is
provided for in paragraph 2 hereof and effectively exercised by Tenant, the rental adjustments provided herein shall apply to the term
of the Lease so renewed, or

[_]If this box is checked, the annual rental payable hereunder (and accordingly the monthly installments) shall be adjusted every
Lease Year Anniversary by the greater of: (i) percent ( %)
over the amount then payable hereunder, or, (i) the percentage increase (but not any decrease) in the numerical index of the
"Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers" (1982-84 = 100) published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the United States
Department of Labor ("CPI") for the immediately preceding twelve (12) month period over the amount then payable hereunder.

[ ]If this box is checked, the annual rental payable hereunder (and accordingly the monthly installments) shall be adjusted every

Lease Year Anniversary by $ over the amount then payable hereunder. In the event renewal of this
Lease is provided for in paragraph 2 hereof and effectively exercised by Tenant, the rental adjustments provided herein shall apply to
the term of the Lease so renewed.

[ | If this box is checked, the annual rental payable hereunder (and accordingly the monthly installments) shall be adjusted as provided
on Exhibit B.

If this box is checked, Tenant shall pay all rental to Landlord's Agent at the following address:
PO Box 1528, Henderson NC 27536

Page 2 of 12
STANDARD FORM 592-T
Revised 7/2020
Tenant Initials Landlord Initials © 7/2020

Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.ziplLogix.com 101 N College St



LATE CHARGES

4. TIf Landlord fails to receive full rental payment within 10 days after it becomes due, Tenant shall pay
Landlord, as additional rental, a late charge equal to Ten Point Zero percent 10.000
(%) of the overdue amount or $ 240.00 whichever is greater, plus any actual bank fees incurred for dishonored

payments. The parties agree that such a late charge represents a fair and reasonable estimate of the cost Landlord will incur by reason
of such late payment.

SECURITY DEPOSIT

5. Upon the execution of this Lease, Tenant shall deposit with Landlord the sum of $ as a security
deposit which shall be held by Landlord as security for the full and faithful performance by Tenant of each and every term, covenant
and condition of this Lease. The security deposit does not represent payment of and Tenant shall not presume application of same as
payment of the last monthly installment of rental due under this Lease. Landlord shall have no obligation to segregate or otherwise
account for the security deposit except as provided in this paragraph 5. If any of the rental or other charges or sums payable by Tenant
shall be over-due and unpaid or should payments be made by Landlord on behalf of Tenant, or should Tenant fail to perform any of
the terms of this Lease, then Landlord may, at its option, appropriate and apply the security deposit, or so much thereof as may be
necessary, to compensate toward the payment of the rents, charges or other sums due from Tenant, or towards any loss, damage or
expense sustained by Landlord resulting from such default on the part of the Tenant; and in such event Tenant upon demand shall
restore the security deposit to the amount set forth above in this paragraph 5. In the event Tenant furnishes Landlord with proof that
all utility bills and other bills of Tenant related to the Premises have been paid through the date of Lease termination, and performs all
of Tenant's other obligations under this Lease, the security deposit shall be returned to Tenant within sixty (60) days after the date of
the expiration or sooner termination of the term of this Lease and the surrender of the Premises by Tenant in compliance with the
provisions of this Lease.

[ ]I this box is checked, Agent shall hold the security deposit in trust and shall be entitled to the interest, if any, thereon.

UTILITY BILLS/SERVICE CONTRACTS

6. Landlord and Tenant agree that utility bills and service contracts ("Service Obligations") for the Premises shall be paid by the
party indicated below as to each Service Obligation. In each instance, the party undertaking responsibility for payment of a Service
Obligation covenants that they will pay the applicable bills prior to delinquency. The responsibility to pay for a Service Obligation
shall include all metering, hook-up fees or other miscellaneous charges associated with establishing, installing and maintaining such
utility or contract in said party's name. Within thirty (30) days of the Lease Commencement Date, Tenant shall provide Landlord with
a copy of any requested Tenant Service Obligation information.

Service Obligation Landlord Tenant Not Applicable

Sewer/Septic
Water
Electric

Gas
Telephone
HVAC (maintenance/service contract) X
Elevator (including phone line) X
Security System

Fiber Optic

Janitor/Cleaning

Trash/Dumpster
Landscaping/Maintenance

Sprinkler System (including phone line)
Pest Control

> [ [ |

x| XXX

Page 3 of 12
STANDARD FORM 592-T
Revised 7/2020
Tenant Initials Landlord Initials © 7/2020

Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipLogix.com 101 N College St



Landlord shall not be liable for injury to Tenant's business or loss of income therefrom or for damage that may be sustained by the
person, merchandise or personal property of Tenant, its employees, agents, invitees or contractors or any other person in or about the
Premises, caused by or resulting from fire, steam, electricity, gas, water or rain, which may leak or flow from or into any part of the
Premises, or from the breakage, leakage, obstruction or other defects of any utility installations, air conditioning system or other
components of the Premises, except to the extent that such damage or loss is caused by Landlord's gross negligence or willful
misconduct. Landlord represents and warrants that the heating, ventilation and air conditioning system(s) and utility installations
existing as of the Lease Commencement Date shall be in good order and repair. Subject to the provisions of this paragraph 6, Landlord
shall not be liable in damages or otherwise for any discontinuance, failure or interruption of service to the Premises of utilities or the
heating, ventilation and air conditioning system(s) and Tenant shall have no right to terminate this Lease or withhold rental because of
the same.

RULES AND REGULATIONS

7. []If this box is checked, the rules and regulations attached hereto (“Rules and Regulations™) are made a part of this Lease.
Tenant agrees to comply with all Rules and Regulations of Landlord in connection with the Premises which are in effect at the time of
the execution of the Lease or which may be from time to time promulgated by Landlord in its reasonable discretion, provided notice of
such new Rules and Regulations is given to Tenant in writing and the same are not in conflict with the terms and conditions of this
Lease.

PERMITTED USES

8. The permitted use of the Premises shall be: ABC STORE

("Permitted Use"). The Premises shall be used and wholly occupied by Tenant solely for the purposes of conducting the Permitted
Use, and the Premises shall not be used for any other purposes unless Tenant obtains Landlord's prior written approval of any change
in use. Landlord makes no representation or warranty regarding the suitability of the Premises for or the legality (under zoning or
other applicable ordinances) of the Permitted Use for the Premises, provided however, that Landlord does represent that it has no
contractual obligations with other parties which will materially interfere with or prohibit the Permitted Use of Tenant at the Premises.
At Tenant's sole expense, Tenant shall procure, maintain and make available for Landlord's inspection from time to time any
governmental license(s) or permit(s) required for the proper and lawful conduct of Tenant's business in the Premises. Tenant shall not
cause or permit any waste to occur in the Premises and shall not overload the floor, or any mechanical, electrical, plumbing or utility
systems serving the Premises. Tenant shall keep the Premises, and every part thereof, in a clean and wholesome condition, free from
any objectionable noises, loud music, objectionable odors or nuisances.

TAXES AND INSURANCE

(Note: The following box should only be checked if there are no boxes checked below in paragraph 9.)

[X| If this box is checked, Tenant shall have no responsibility to reimburse Landlord for taxes or insurance.

9. Landlord shall pay all taxes (including but not limited to, ad valorem taxes, special assessments and any other governmental
charges) on the Premises and shall procure and pay for such commercial general liability, broad form fire and extended and special
perils insurance with respect to the Premises as Landlord in its reasonable discretion may deem appropriate. Tenant shall reimburse
Landlord for all taxes and insurance as provided herein within fifteen (15) days after receipt of notice from Landlord as to the amount
due. Tenant shall be solely responsible for insuring Tenant's personal and business property and for paying any taxes or governmental
assessments levied thereon. Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for taxes and insurance during the term of this Lease, and any extension
or renewal thereof. If boxes are checked below, the manner of reimbursement shall be as indicated:

Taxes
[] The amount by which all taxes (including but not limited to, ad valorem taxes, special assessments and any other governmental
charges) on the Premises for each tax year exceed all taxes on the Premises for the tax year n/a ; or

[] All taxes (including but not limited to, ad valorem taxes, special assessments and any other governmental charges) on the
Premises for each tax year.

If the final Lease Year of the term fails to coincide with the tax year, then any excess for the tax year during which the term ends shall
be reduced by the pro rata part of such tax year beyond the Lease term. If such taxes for the year in which the Lease terminates are not
ascertainable before payment of the last month's rental, then the amount of such taxes assessed against the Premises for the previous
tax year shall be used as a basis for determining the pro rata share, if any, to be paid by Tenant for that portion of the last Lease Year.

[ ] If this box is checked, Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for taxes by paying to Landlord, beginning on the Rent
Commencement Date and on the first day of each calendar month during the term hereof, an amount equal to one-

Page 4 of 12
STANDARD FORM 592-T
Revised 7/2020
Tenant Initials Landlord Initials © 7/2020

Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipLogix.com 101 N College St



twelfth (1/12) of the then current tax payments for the Premises. Upon receipt of bills, statements or other evidence of
taxes due, Landlord shall pay or cause to be paid the taxes. If at any time the reimbursement payments by Tenant
hereunder do not equal the amount of taxes paid by Landlord, Tenant shall upon demand pay to Landlord an amount
equal to the deficiency or Landlord shall refund to Tenant any overpayment (as applicable) as documented by
Landlord. Landlord shall have no obligation to segregate or otherwise account for the tax reimbursements paid
hereunder except as provided in this paragraph 9.

Insurance

[] the excess cost of commercial general liability, broad form fire and extended and special perils insurance with respect to the
Premises over the cost of the first year of the Lease term for each subsequent year during the term of this Lease; or

[] the cost of all commercial general liability, broad form fire and extended and special perils insurance with respect to the
Premises.

[] If this box is checked, Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for insurance by paying to Landlord, beginning on the Rent
Commencement Date and on the first day of each calendar month during the term hereof, an amount equal to one-
twelfth (1/12) of the then current insurance premiums for the Premises. Upon receipt of bills, statements or other
evidence of insurance premiums due, Landlord shall pay or cause to be paid the insurance premiums. If at any time
the reimbursement payments by Tenant hereunder do not equal the amount of insurance premiums paid by
Landlord, Tenant shall upon demand pay to Landlord an amount equal to the deficiency or Landlord shall refund to
Tenant any overpayment (as applicable) as documented by Landlord. Landlord shall have no obligation to segregate
or otherwise account for the insurance premium reimbursements paid here under except as provided in this
paragraph 9.

Provided however, notwithstanding any provision of the foregoing, that in the event Tenant's use of the Premises results in an increase
in the rate of insurance on the Premises, Tenant shall pay to Landlord, upon demand and as additional rental, the amount of any such
increase,

INSURANCE; WAIVER; INDEMNITY

10. (a) During the term of this Lease, Tenant shall maintain commercial general liability insurance coverage (occurrence coverage)
with broad form contractual liability coverage and with coverage limits of not less than 1,000,000.00

combined single limit, per occurrence, specifically including liquor liability insurance covering consumption of alcoholic beverages
by customers of Tenant should Tenant choose to sell alcoholic beverages. Such policy shall insure Tenant's performance of the
indemnity provisions of this Lease, but the amount of such insurance shall not limit Tenant's liability nor relieve Tenant of any
obligation hereunder. All policies of insurance provided for herein shall name as "additional insureds" Landlord, Landlord's Agent, all
mortgagees of Landlord and such other individuals or entities as Landlord may from time to time designate upon written notice to
Tenant. Tenant shall provide to Landlord, at least thirty (30) days prior to expiration, certificates of insurance to evidence any renewal
or additional insurance procured by Tenant. Tenant shall provide evidence of all insurance required under this Lease to Landlord prior
to the Lease Commencement Date.

(b) Landlord (for itself and its insurer) waives any rights, including rights of subrogation, and Tenant (for itself and its
insurer) waives any rights, including rights of subrogation, each may have against the other for compensation of any loss or damage
occasioned to Landlord or Tenant arising from any risk generally covered by the "all risks” insurance required to be carried by
Landlord and Tenant. The foregoing waivers of subrogation shall be operative only so long as available in the State of North Carolina.
The foregoing waivers shall be effective whether or not the parties maintain the insurance required to be carried pursuant to this
Lease.

(c) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph 10(b), Tenant indemnifies Landlord for damages proximately caused by the
negligence or wrongful conduct of Tenant and Tenant's employees, agents, invitees or contractors. Except as otherwise provided in
paragraph 10(b), Landlord indemnifies Tenant for damages proximately caused by the negligence or wrongful conduct of Landlord
and Landlord's employees, agents, invitees or contractors. The indemnity provisions in this paragraph 10 cover personal injury and
property damage and shall bind the employees, agents, invitees or contractors of Landlord and Tenant (as the case may be). The
indemnity obligations in this paragraph 10 shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease.

Page 5 of 12
STANDARD FORM 592-T
Revised 7/2020
Tenant Initials Landlord Initials © 7/2020

Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipLoglx.com 101 N College St



REPAIRS BY LANDLORD

11. Landlord agrees to keep in good repair the roof, foundation, structural supports and exterior walls of the buildings located on the
Premises (exclusive of all glass and exclusive of all exterior doors) and, except as may be specifically allocated to Tenant in paragraph
12 herein, Landlord agrees to be responsible for capital replacements on the Premises; provided that Landlord shall not be responsible
for repairs or capital replacements rendered necessary by the negligence or intentional wrongful acts of Tenant, its employees, agents,
invitees or contractors. Tenant shall promptly report in writing to Landlord any defective condition known to it which Landlord is
required to repair or replace and failure to report such conditions shall make Tenant responsible to Landlord for any liability incurred
by Landlord by reason of such conditions.

(Note: Should Landlord and Tenant need to further detail the allocation of responsibility hereunder, the Special Stipulations
box at the end of the Lease should be checked and such allocation should be specified on an Exhibit B.)

REPAIRS BY TENANT

12 (a) Tenant accepts the Premises in their present condition and as suited for the Permitted Use and Tenant's intended purposes.
Tenant, throughout the initial term of this Lease, and any extension or renewal thereof, at its expense, shall maintain in good order and
repair the Premises, (except those repairs expressly required to be made by Landlord hereunder), specifically including but not limited
to any building and other improvements located thereon, all light bulb and ballast replacements, plumbing fixtures and systems repairs
within the Premises and water heater repairs. Tenant further agrees to care for the grounds around the building, including the mowing
of grass, care of shrubs and general landscaping. Tenant shall use only licensed contractors for repairs where such license is required.
Landlord shall have the right to approve the contract or as to any repairs in excess of $ 1,500.00

[ ] If this box is checked, Tenant, at its expense, shall maintain the heating, ventilation and air conditioning system(s)
(“HVAC Systems™) in good order and repair, including but not limited to replacement of parts, compressors, air handling units and
heating units. Tenant shall be required to maintain a preventive maintenance contract for the HVAC Systems on terms and with a
provider reasonably acceptable to Landlord, which contract shall call for at least semi-annual maintenance, inspection and repair of
such HVAC Systems (“HVAC Contract”). Tenant shall provide a copy of the HVAC Contract to Landlord annually. Provided that: (i)
Tenant has kept the HVAC Contract in force, and, (ii) Tenant shall have obtained Landlord's prior written approval of the contractor
and the repair or replacement expenses for the HVAC Systems, then, for any calendar year, Tenant shall be responsible for the cost of
repairing or replacing the HVAC Systems (or any major component thereof) up to $ per HVAC System
with a maximum repair or replacement cost of $ for all HVAC Systems (“HVAC Cap”) in such year.
Tenant shall provide Landlord copies of all records related to the servicing, maintenance, repair, and replacement of the HVAC
Systems upon the occurrence of any service, maintenance, repair, or replacement of the HVAC Systems. Landlord shall be responsible
for paying the repair cost or replacement cost of such HVAC System in excess of the HVAC Cap.

[X] If this box is checked, Landlord, at its expense, shall maintain the heating, ventilation and air conditioning system(s)
(“HVAC Systems™) in good order and repair, including but not limited to replacement of parts, compressors, air handling units and
heating units. Provided that, Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for the cost of repairing or replacing the HVAC Systems (or any major
component thereof) an amount up to §$ per HVAC System with a maximum replacement cost of
$ for all HVAC Systems (“HVAC Cap”) in such year. Landlord shall be responsible for paying the repair
cost or replacement cost of such HVAC System in excess of the HVAC Cap. Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for the amount of the
HVAC Cap payable hereunder upon the written request of Landlord.

(b) Tenant, Tenant's employees, agents, invitees or contractors shall take no action which may void any manufacturers or
installers warranty with relation to the Premises. Tenant shall indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from any liability, claim,
demand or cause of action arising on account of Tenant's breach of the provisions of this paragraph 12.

ALTERATIONS

13. Tenant shall not make any alterations, additions, or improvements to the Premises without Landlord's prior written consent, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Landlord, in connection with Landlord's consent to same, may
designate any such alterations, additions, or improvements to the Premises as subject to removal upon the expiration or earlier
termination of this Lease, in which case, upon Landlord's written notice to Tenant to remove same at the expiration or earlier
termination of this Lease, Tenant shall do so and restore the Premises to the condition that existed prior to such alterations, additions,
or improvements being made. Tenant shall promptly remove any alterations, additions, or improvements constructed in violation of
this paragraph 13 upon Landlord's written request. All approved alterations, additions, and improvements will be accomplished in a
good and workmanlike manner, in conformity with all applicable laws and regulations, and by a contractor approved by Landlord, free
of any liens or encumbrances. Tenant has no authority to allow, will not permit, and will indemmify Landlord and hold it harmless
from, any contractors', laborers', mechanics', or materialmen's liens, or any other similar liens filed against the Premises in connection
with any alterations, additions, or improvements to the Premises.

Page 6 of 12
STANDARD FORM 592-T
Revised 7/2020

Tenant Initials Landlord Initials © 7/2020
Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026  www.ziplogix.com 101 N College St




SURRENDERING THE PREMISES

14. Tenant shall schedule its move date with Landlord, in writing, in advance of the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease.
Tenant agrees to return the Premises to Landlord at the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, broom clean and in as good
condition and repair as on the Lease Commencement Date, natural wear and tear, damage by storm, fire, lightning, earthquake or other
casualty alone excepted. By written notice to Tenant, Landlord may require Tenant to remove any alterations, additions or
improvements at the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease (whether or not made with Landlord's consent and whether or not
designated via paragraph 13 as subject to removal) and to restore the Premises to its prior condition as of the Lease Commencement
Date, all at Tenant's expense. All alterations, additions and improvements which Landlord has not required Tenant to remove shall
become Landlord's property and shall be surrendered to Landlord upon the termination of this Lease, except that Tenant may remove
any of Tenant's personal property or trade fixtures which can be removed without material damage to the Premises. Tenant shall
repair, at Tenant's expense, any damage to the Premises caused by the removal of any such personal property or trade fixtures.

(Note: Should Landlord and Tenant need to further enumerate their intent/understanding as to the status of items or property
as fixtures, trade fixtures, or personal property hereunder, the Special Stipulations box at the end of the Lease should be
checked and such enumeration should be specified by listing same by category on an Exhibit B.)

DESTRUCTION OF OR DAMAGE TO PREMISES

15. (a) If the Premises are totally destroyed by storm, fire, lightning, earthquake or other casualty, Landlord shall have the right
to terminate this Lease on written notice to Tenant within thirty (30) days after such destruction and this Lease shall terminate as of
the date of such destruction and rental shall be accounted for as between Landlord and Tenant as of that date.

(b) If the Premises are damaged but not wholly destroyed by any such casualties or if the Landlord does not elect to terminate
the Lease under paragraph 15(a) above, Landlord shall commence (or shall cause to be commenced) reconstruction of the Premises
within one hundred twenty (120) days after such occurrence and prosecute the same diligently to completion, not to exceed two
hundred seventy (270) days from the date upon which Landlord receives applicable permits and insurance proceeds. In the event
Landlord shall fail to substantially complete reconstruction of the Premises within said two hundred seventy (270) day period,
Tenant's sole remedy shall be to terminate this Lease.

(c) In the event of any casualty at the Premises during the last one (1) year of the Lease Term, Landlord and Tenant each
shall have the option to terminate this Lease on written notice to the other of exercise thereof within sixty (60) days after such
occurrence.

(d) In the event of reconstruction of the Premises, Tenant shall continue the operation of its business in the Premises during
any such period to the extent reasonably practicable from the standpoint of prudent business management, and the obligation of
Tenant to pay annual rental and any other sums due under this Lease shall remain in full force and effect during the period of
reconstruction. The annual rental and other sums due under this Lease shall be abated proportionately with the degree to which
Tenant's use of the Premises is impaired, commencing from the date of destruction and continuing during the period of such
reconstruction. Tenant shall not be entitled to any compensation or damages from Landlord for loss of use of the whole or any part of
the Premises, Tenant's personal property, or any inconvenience or annoyance occasioned by such damage, reconstruction or
replacement.

(e) In the event of the termination of this Lease under any of the provisions of this paragraph 15, both Landlord and Tenant
shall be released from any liability or obligation under this Lease arising after the date of termination, except as otherwise provided
for in this Lease.

GOVERNMENTAL ORDERS

16. Tenant, at its own expense, agrees to comply with: (a) any law, statute, ordinance, regulation, rule, requirement, order, court
decision or procedural requirement of any governmental or quasi-governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Premises; (b)
the rules and regulations of any applicable governmental insurance authority or any similar body, relative to the Premises and Tenant's
activities therein; (c¢) provisions of or rules enacted pursuant to any private use restrictions, as the same may be amended from time to
time and (d) the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C.S. §12101, et seq.) and the regulations and accessibility guidelines enacted
pursuant thereto, as the same may be amended from time to time. Landlord and Tenant agree, however, that if in order to comply with
such requirements the cost to Tenant shall exceed a sum equal to one (1) year's rent, then Tenant may terminate this Lease by giving
written notice of termination to Landlord in accordance with the terms of this Lease, which termination shall become effective sixty
(60) days after receipt of such notice and which notice shall eliminate the necessity of compliance with such requirements, unless,
within thirty (30) days of receiving such notice, Landlord agrees in writing to be responsible for such compliance, at its own expense,
and commences compliance activity, in which case Tenant's notice given hereunder shall not terminate this Lease.

CONDEMNATION

17. (a) If the entire Premises shall be appropriated or taken under the power of eminent domain by any governmental or quasi-
governmental authority or under threat of and in lieu of condemnation (hereinafter, "taken" or "taking"), this Lease shall terminate as
of the date of such taking, and Landlord and Tenant shall have no further liability or obligation arising under this Lease after such
date, except as otherwise provided for in this Lease.

Page 7 of 12
STANDARD FORM 592-T
Revised 7/2020
Tenant Initials Landlord Initials © 7/2020

Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 ww ziplLogix.com 101 N College St



(b) If more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the floor area of any building of the Premises is taken, or if by reason of any
taking, regardless of the amount so taken, the remainder of the Premises is not one undivided space or is rendered unusable for the
Permitted Use, either Landlord or Tenant shall have the right to terminate this Lease as of the date Tenant is required to vacate the portion
of the Premises taken, upon giving notice of such election within thirty (30) days after receipt by Tenant from Landlord of written notice
that said Premises have been or will be so taken. In the event of such termination, both Landlord and Tenant shall be released from any
liability or obligation under this Lease arising after the date of termination, except as otherwise provided for in this Lease.

(¢) Landlord and Tenant, immediately after learning of any taking, shall give notice thereof to each other.

(d) If this Lease is not terminated on account of a taking as provided herein above, then Tenant shall continue to occupy that
portion of the Premises not taken and the parties shall proceed as follows: (i) at Landlord's cost and expense and as soon as reasonably
possible, Landlord shall restore (or shall cause to be restored) the Premises remaining to a complete unit of like quality and character
as existed prior to such appropriation or taking, and (ii) the annual rent provided for in paragraph 3 and other sums due under the
Lease shall be reduced on an equitable basis, taking into account the relative values of the portion taken as compared to the portion
remaining. Tenant waives any statutory rights of termination that may arise because of any partial taking of the Premises.

(e) Landlord shall be entitled to the entire condemnation award for any taking of the Premises or any part thereof. Tenant's
right to receive any amounts separately awarded to Tenant directly from the condemning authority for the taking of its merchandise,
personal property, relocation expenses and/or interests in other than the real property taken shall not be affected in any manner by the
provisions of this paragraph 17, provided Tenant's award does not reduce or affect Landlord's award and provided further, Tenant
shall have no claim for the loss of its leasehold estate.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

19. The happening of any one or more of the following events (hereinafter any one of which may be referred to as an "Event of
Default") during the term of this Lease, or any renewal or extension thereof, shall constitute a breach of this Lease on the part of the
Tenant: (a) Tenant fails to pay when due the rental or any other monetary obligation as provided for herein; (b) Tenant abandons or
vacates the Premises; (c) Tenant fails to comply with or abide by and perform any non-monetary obligation imposed upon Tenant
under this Lease within thirty (30) days after written notice of such breach; (d) Tenant is adjudicated bankrupt; (¢) A permanent
receiver is appointed for Tenant's property and such receiver is not removed within sixty (60) days after written notice from Landlord
to Tenant to obtain such removal; (f) Tenant, either voluntarily or involuntarily, takes advantage of any debt or relief proceedings
under any present or future law, whereby the rent or any part thereof is, or is proposed to be, reduced or payment thereof deferred and
such proceeding is not dismissed within sixty (60) days of the filing thereof: (g) Tenant makes an assignment for benefit of creditors;
or (h) Tenant's effects are levied upon or attached under process against Tenant, which is not satisfied or dissolved within thirty (30)
days after written notice from Landlord to Tenant to obtain satisfaction thereof.

REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT

20. Upon the occurrence of Event of Default, Landlord may pursue any one or more of the following remedies separately or
concurrently, without prejudice to any other remedy herein provided or provided by law: (a) Landlord may terminate this Lease by
giving written notice to Tenant and upon such termination shall be entitled to recover from Tenant damages as may be permitted
under applicable law; or (b) Landlord may terminate this Lease by giving written notice to Tenant and, upon such termination, shall be
entitled to recover from the Tenant damages in an amount equal to all rental which is due and all rental which would otherwise have
become due throughout the remaining term of this Lease, or any renewal or extension thereof (as if this Lease had not been
terminated); or (c) Landlord, as Tenant's agent, without terminating this Lease, may enter upon and rent the Premises, in whole or in
part, at the best price obtainable by reasonable effort, without advertisement and by private negotiations and for any term Landlord
deems proper, with Tenant being liable to Landlord for the deficiency, if any, between Tenant's rent hereunder and the price obtained
by Landlord on reletting, provided however, that Landlord shall not be considered to be under any duty by reason of this provision to
take any action to mitigate damages by reason of Tenant's default and expressly shall have no duty to mitigate Tenant's damages. No
termination of this Lease prior to the normal ending thereof, by lapse of time or otherwise, shall affect Landlord's right to collect rent
for the period prior to termination thereof. Tenant acknowledges and understands that Landlord's acceptance of partial rental will not
waive Tenant's breach of this Lease or limit Landlord's rights against Tenant hereunder or Landlord's right to evict Tenant through a
summary ejectment proceeding, whether filed before or after Landlord's acceptance of any such partial rental.

Page 8 of 12
STANDARD FORM 592-T
Revised 7/2020
Tenant Initials Landlord Initials © 7/2020

Preduced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipl ogix.com 101 N College St



EXTERIOR SIGNS

21. Tenant shall place no signs upon the outside walls, doors or roof of the Premises, except with the express written consent of the
Landlord in Landlord's sole discretion. Any consent given by Landlord shall expressly not be a representation of or warranty of any
legal entitlement to signage at the Premises. Any and all signs placed on the Premises by Tenant shall be maintained in compliance
with governmental rules and regulations governing such signs and Tenant shall be responsible to Landlord for any damage caused by
installation, use or maintenance of said signs, and all damage incident to removal thereof.

LANDLORD'S ENTRY OF PREMISES

22. Landlord may advertise the Premises “For Rent” 60 days before the termination of this Lease. Landlord
may enter the Premises upon prior notice at reasonable hours to exhibit same to prospective purchasers or tenants, to make repairs
required of Landlord under the terms hereof, for reasonable business purposes and otherwise as may be agreed by Landlord and
Tenant. Landlord may enter the Premises at any time without prior notice, in the event of an emergency or to make emergency repairs
to the Premises. Upon request of Landlord, Tenant shall provide Landlord with a functioning key to the Premises and shall replace
such key if the locks to the Premises are changed.

QUIET ENJOYMENT
23. So long as Tenant observes and performs the covenants and agreements contained herein, it shall at all times during the Lease
term peacefully and quietly have and enjoy possession of the Premises, subject to the terms hereof.

HOLDING OVER

24. Tf Tenant remains in possession of the Premises after expiration of the term hereof, Tenant shall be a tenant at sufferance and
there shall be no renewal of this Lease by operation of law. In such event, commencing on the date following the date of expiration of
the term, the monthly rental payable under Paragraph 3 above shall for each month, or fraction thereof during which Tenant so
remains in possession of the Premises, be twice the monthly rental otherwise payable under Paragraph 3 above.

ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS

25. (a) Tenant covenants that with respect to any Hazardous Materials (as defined below) it will comply with any and all federal,
state or local laws, ordinances, rules, decrees, orders, regulations or court decisions relating to hazardous substances, hazardous
materials, hazardous waste, toxic substances, environmental conditions on, under or about the Premises or soil and ground water
conditions, including, but not limited to, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, any other legal requirement concerning
hazardous or toxic substances, and any amendments to the foregoing (collectively, all such matters being “Hazardous Materials
Requirements”). Tenant shall remove from the Premises, all Hazardous Materials that were placed on the Premises by Tenant or
Tenant's employees, agents, invitees or contractors, either after their use by Tenant or upon the expiration or earlier termination of this
Lease, incompliance with all Hazardous Materials Requirements.

(b) Tenant shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary permits in connection with its use, storage and disposal of
Hazardous Materials, and shall develop and maintain, and where necessary file with the appropriate authorities, all reports, receipts,
manifest, filings, lists and invoices covering those Hazardous Materials and Tenant shall provide Landlord with copies of all such
items upon request. Tenant shall provide within five (5) days after receipt thereof, copies of all notices, orders, claims or other
correspondence from any federal, state or local government or agency alleging any violation of any Hazardous Materials
Requirements by Tenant, or related in any manner to Hazardous Materials. In addition, Tenant shall provide Landlord with copies of
all responses to such correspondence at the time of the response.

(c) Tenant hereby indemnifies and holds harmless Landlord, its successors and assigns from and against any and all losses,
liabilities, damages, injuries, penalties, fines, costs, expenses and claims of any and every kind whatsoever (including attorney's fees
and costs) paid, incurred or suffered by, or asserted against Landlord as a result of any claim, demand or judicial or administrative
action by any person or entity (including governmental or private entities) for, with respect to, or as a direct or indirect result of, the
presence on or under or the escape, seepage, leakage, spillage, discharge, emission or release from the Premises of any Hazardous
Materials caused by Tenant or Tenant's employees, agents, invitees or contractors. This indemnity shall also apply to any release of
Hazardous Materials caused by a fire or other casualty to the Premises if such Hazardous Materials were stored on the Premises by
Tenant, its agents, employees, invitees or successors in interest.

(d) For purposes of this Lease, "Hazardous Materials” means any chemical, compound, material, substance or other matter
that: (i) is defined as a hazardous substance, hazardous material or waste, or toxic substance pursuant to any Hazardous Materials
Requirements, (ii) is regulated, controlled or governed by any Hazardous Materials Requirements, (iii) is petroleum or a petroleum
product, or (iv) is asbestos, formaldehyde, a radioactive material, drug, bacteria, virus, or other injurious or potentially injurious
material (by itself or in combination with other materials).

() The warranties and indemnities contained in this paragraph 25 shall survive the termination of this Lease.

Page 9 of 12
STANDARD FORM 592-T
Revised 7/2020
Tenant Initials Landlord Initials : © 7/2019

Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www zipLogix.com 101 N College St



SUBORDINATION; ATTORNMENT; ESTOPPEL

26. (a) This Lease and all of Tenant's rights hereunder are and shall be subject and subordinate to all currently existing and future
mortgages affecting the Premises. Within ten (10) days after the receipt of a written request from Landlord or any Landlord
mortgagee, Tenant shall confirm such subordination by executing and delivering Landlord and Landlord's mortgagee a recordable
subordination agreement and such other documents as may be reasonably requested, in form and content satisfactory to Landlord and
Landlord's mortgagee. Provided, however, as a condition to Tenant's obligation to execute and deliver any such subordination
agreement, the applicable mortgagee must agree that mortgagee shall not unilaterally, materially alter this Lease and this Lease shall
not be divested by foreclosure or other default proceedings thereunder so long as Tenant shall not be in default under the terms of this
Lease beyond any applicable cure period set forth herein. Tenant acknowledges that any Landlord mortgagee has the right to
subordinate at any time its interest in this Lease and the leasehold estate to that of Tenant, without Tenant's consent.

(b) If Landlord sells, transfers, or conveys its interest in the Premises or this Lease, or if the same is foreclosed judicially or
nonjudicially, or otherwise acquired, by a Landlord mortgagee, upon the request of Landlord or Landlord's successor, Tenant shall
attorn to said successor, provided said successor accepts the Premises subject to this Lease. Tenant shall, upon the request of Landlord
or Landlord's successor, execute an attornment agreement confirming the same, in form and substance acceptable to Landlord or
Landlord's successor and Landlord shall thereupon be released and discharged from all its covenants and obligations under this Lease,
except those obligations that have accrued prior to such sale, transfer or conveyance; and Tenant agrees to look solely to the successor
in interest of Landlord for the performance of those covenants accruing after such sale, transfer or conveyance. Such agreement shall
provide, among other things, that said successor shall not be bound by (a) any prepayment of more than one (1) month's rental (except
the Security Deposit) or (b) any material amendment of this Lease made after the later of the Lease Commencement Date or the date
that such successor's lien or interest first arose, unless said successor shall have consented to such amendment.

(c) Within ten (10) days after request from Landlord, Tenant shall execute and deliver to Landlord an estoppel certificate (to
be prepared by Landlord and delivered to Tenant) with appropriate facts then in existence concerning the status of this Lease and
Tenant's occupancy, and with any exceptions thereto noted in writing by Tenant. Tenant's failure to execute and deliver the Estoppel
Certificate within said ten (10) day period shall be deemed to make conclusive and binding upon Tenant in favor of Landlord and any
potential mortgagee or transferee the statements contained in such estoppel certificate without exception.

ABANDONMENT

27. Tenant shall not abandon the Premises at any time during the Lease term. If Tenant shall abandon the Premises or be dispossessed
by process of law, any personal property belonging to Tenant and left on the Premises, at the option of Landlord, shall be deemed
abandoned, and available to Landlord to use or sell to offset any rent due or any expenses incurred by removing same and restoring
the Premises.

NOTICES

28. All notices required or permitted under this Lease shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered or sent by U.S. certified
mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Notices to Tenant shall be delivered or sent to the address shown at the beginning of
this Lease, except that upon Tenant taking possession of the Premises, then the Premises shall be Tenant's address for such purposes.
Notices to Landlord shall be delivered or sent to the address shown at the beginning of this Lease and notices to Agent, if any, shall be
delivered or sent to the address set forth in Paragraph 3 hereof. All notices shall be effective upon delivery. Any party may change its
notice address upon written notice to the other parties, given as provided herein.

BROKERS

29. Except as expressly provided herein, Tenant and Landlord agree to indemnify and hold each other harmless from any and all
claims of brokers, consultants or real estate agents by, through or under the indemnifying party for fees or commissions arising out of
the lease of the Property to Tenant. Tenant and Landlord represent and warrant to each other that: (i) except as to the brokers
designated below ("Brokers"), they have not employed nor engaged any brokers, consultants or real estate agents to be involved in this
transaction and (ii) that the compensation of the Brokers is established by and shall be governed by separate agreements entered into
as amongst the Brokers, the Tenant and/or the Landlord.

("Listing Agency"),
("Listing Agent" - License # )

Acting as: | |Landlord's Agent; D Dual Agent

and WW Properties (Leasing Agency"),
Daniel White ("Leasing Agent" - License # )

Acting as: [ | Tenant's Agent; | |Landlord's (Sub)Agent; [ |Dual Agent

Page 10 of 12
STANDARD FORM 592-T
Revised 7/2020

Tenant Initials Landlord Initials © 7/2020
Produced with zpForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.ziploglx.com 101 N College St




GENERAL TERMS

30. (a) "Landlord” as used in this Lease shall include the undersigned, its heirs, representatives, assigns and successors in title to
the Premises. "Agent" as used in this Lease shall mean the party designated as same in Paragraph 3, its heirs, representatives, assigns
and successors. "Tenant" shall include the undersigned and its heirs, representatives, assigns and successors, and if this Lease shall be
validly assigned or sublet, shall include also Tenant's assignees or sublessees as to the Premises covered by such assignment or
sublease. "Landlord", "Tenant", and "Agent" include male and female, singular and plural, corporation, partnership or individual, as
may fit the particular parties.

(b) No failure of Landlord to exercise any power given Landlord hereunder or to insist upon strict compliance by Tenant of
its obligations hereunder and no custom or practice of the parties at variance with the terms hereof shall constitute a waiver of
Landlord's right to demand exact compliance with the terms hereof. All rights, powers and privileges conferred hereunder upon parties
hereto shall be cumulative and not restrictive of those given by law.

(c) Time is of the essence in this Lease.

(d) This Lease may be executed in one or more counterparts, which taken together, shall constitute one and the same original
document. Copies of original signature pages of this Lease may be exchanged via facsimile or e-mail, and any such copies shall
constitute originals. This Lease constitutes the sole and entire agreement among the parties hereto and no modification of this Lease
shall be binding unless in writing and signed by all parties hereto. The invalidity of one or more provisions of this Lease shall not
affect the validity of any other provisions hereof and this Lease shall be construed and enforced as if such invalid provisions were not
included.

(¢) Each signatory to this Lease represents and warrants that he or she has full authority to sign this Lease and such
instruments as may be necessary to effectuate any transaction contemplated by this Lease on behalf of the party for whom he or she
signs and that his or her signature binds such party. The parties acknowledge and agree that: (i) the initials lines at the bottom of each
page of this Lease are merely evidence of their having reviewed the terms of each page, and (ii) the complete execution of such initials
lines shall not be a condition of the effectiveness of this Lease.

(f) Upon request by either Landlord or Tenant, the parties hereto shall execute a short form lease (memorandum of lease) in
recordable form, setting forth such provisions hereof (other than the amount of annual rental and other sums due) as either party may
wish to incorporate. The cost of recording such memorandum of lease shall be borne by the party requesting execution of same.

(g) If legal proceedings are instituted to enforce any provision of this Lease, the prevailing party in the proceeding shall be
entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party reasonable attorneys fees and court costs incurred in connection with the proceeding.

SPECIAL STIPULATIONS

] If this box is checked, additional terms of this Lease are set forth on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference. (Note: Under North Carolina law, real estate agents are not permitted to draft lease provisions.)

Page 11 of 12
STANDARD FORM 592-T
Revised 7/2020
Tenant Initials Landlord Initials © 7/2020

Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifleen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026  www.zIpl ogix.com 101 N College St




THIS DOCUMENT IS A LEGAL DOCUMENT. EXECUTION OF THIS DOCUMENT HAS LEGAL CONSEQUENCES THAT
COULD BE ENFORCEABLE IN A COURT OF LAW. THE NORTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS® MAKES NO
REPRESENTATIONS CONCERNING THE LEGAL SUFFICIENCY, LEGAL EFFECT OR TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THIS
DOCUMENT OR THE TRANSACTION TO WHICH IT RELATES AND RECOMMENDS THAT YOU CONSULT YOUR

ATTORNEY.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto caused this Lease to be duly executed.

LANDLORD:
Individual Business Entity
WW Properties and Rentals LLC
(Name of Firm)
Date:
By:
Daniel White
Date: Title: manager
Date:
TENANT:
Individual Business Entity
Youngsville Board of Alcoholic Beverage Control
(Name of Firm)
Date: By:
Title:
Date: Date:

Page 12 of 12
STANDARD FORM 592-T
Revised 7/2020
© 7/2020

Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fiiteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipl ogix.com 101 N College St



Design Plus Store Fixtures, Inc
5631 Cannon Drive

Monroe, NC 28110
704-821-7799 Fax-704-821-8823

CUSTOMER: Youngsville ABC Board

DATE: 10/26/20
SHEET: 1 of 1

STORE DESIGN
PROPOSAL

DESCRIPTION

We propose the following design services for you new shopping
center store to include:

Lease review and comment

Landlord upfit comment and suggestions

Store Needs and Operation Consultation to determine your needs/wants
Store Fixture Plan and Interior Design

Store Fixture Details

*Wall and Electrical Plan with specifications

*Reflected Ceiling and Lighting Plan

*Construction Detalls as necessary

Colors and finishes selections

Assist with procuring a contractor for the final upfit

Co-ordination with owner, LL and contractor during entire process
Up to three in person meetings with board and/or contractor

Total Cost for services:

$3,500.00
NC TAX 6.75%: $236.25
TOTAL:  $3,736.25

*Qur recent project in Franklin County did not require and
architects seal so I assume one will not be necessary for
your project. If one is required, I will assist in procuring
an architect to provide the necessary drawing and Appendix
sheets.







